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Vision and Mission
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MIA’S MISSION
n To develop, support and monitor quality
and expertise consistent with global best
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the interest of stakeholders.
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Act) states that the functions of the Institute
shall be:
• To determine the qualifications of persons
for admission as members;
• To provide for the training and education;
by the Institute or any other body, of
persons practising or intending to practice
the profession of accountancy;
• To approve the MIA Qualifying Examination
(QE) and to regulate and supervise the
conduct of that Examination;
• To regulate the practice of the profession of
accountancy in Malaysia;
• To promote, in any manner it thinks fit, the
interest of the profession of accountancy in
Malaysia;
• To render pecuniary or other assistance to
members or their dependents as it thinks fit
with a view to protecting or promoting the
welfare of members; and
• Generally to do such acts as it thinks fit
for the purpose of achieving any of the
aforesaid objectives.
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editor’s note

Empowering Effectiveness

H

ave comfort zones vanished for the accounting profession? Nowadays, finance and accounting professionals are facing pressures to transform radically in
order to deliver value to their stakeholders.
Demands for change are affecting the entire financial and
corporate eco-system and nobody is immune, not even boards
of directors. Stringent regulations coupled with enhanced
disclosure requirements mean that it is particularly challenging for board audit committee members to discharge their
oversight. Recognising this, MIA together with the Institute
of Internal Auditors Malaysia (IIA Malaysia) recently came
together to organise the inaugural Audit Committee Conference
themed “Powering for Effectiveness”, which aims to empower
audit committee directors in discharging their responsibilities.
Among the key themes covered were ensuring the effectiveness of the internal audit function and external auditors, and
ensuring that disclosure of risk management and controls abide
by the latest regulatory guidelines (see cover story on page 8 on
Empowering Audit Committees).
Meanwhile, finance and auditing professionals have no
shortage of career choices beyond the conventions of audit,
taxation and corporate. With the ingenuity and prevalence of
fraud in today’s world, savvy accountants might want to consider a lucrative and exciting career in forensic accounting,
which is still nascent in the ASEAN region. Monica Bond, who
has nearly thirty years’ experience in forensic accounting and
litigation support and is a global speaker on the subject, shares
her insights into the prospects for global forensics (see story on
CSI - Accounting Style on page 28).

Technology also ranks as a significant game-changer for
business and the profession. Check out the third installment of
our series on XBRL to find out the best practices that can make
XBRL adoption as smooth as possible for your organisation.
Also, see how the global trends towards BYOD or bring your
own device to work can help save technology costs for your
organisation, but may present security risks.
Could leveraging or gearing up present another option for
optimising business results? Staid corporations earning runof-the-mill but steady returns year on year might want to add
some spice by gearing up, argues our contributor Yogaretnam
Kanagandram, the General Manager Risk Management for the
Asian Institute of Finance (see page 44).
Taxation too can be a transformative instrument. In this
issue, we look into the features and highlights of the angel
investor tax incentives available in Malaysia. Angel investing
could be a viable financing alternative for businesses which are
at an early stage. The move to enhance angel investing augurs
well for the Malaysian technopreneurship start-up eco-system
and could amplify the success rates and competitiveness of
small venture companies.
Finally, our management articles this time around focus
on two themes which are highly relevant – transforming to
perform and reaping returns on investments in innovation. We
hope that these pointers will be helpful in guiding you on your
individual journey to achieving positive change and reaching
greater personal and professional heights. Happy reading!. n
EDITOR

MIA COUNCIL ELECTS NEW VICE-PRESIDENT
The Malaysian Institute of Accountants
Council Members in their recent meeting have elected Johan Idris (pic) as
the new Vice-President of the Institute,
effective 28 March 2013.
Johan Idris, succeeds Abdul Rahim
Abdul Hamid who has relinquished his
post ahead of the expiry of his term this
coming July. Abdul Rahim’s appointment as the MIA Council Member, however will remain until his term expires
in mid-July 2013. This transition was to
ease the way for a smooth succession to the MIA Leadership. Johan is
a Partner in KPMG and heads KPMG Malaysia’s Audit Practice, as well as
the Energy and Natural Resources line of business. He is also a member
of the Audit and Accounting Committee at KPMG Malaysia. Johan’s

letters to the editor /////

vast industry experience spans over 22 years and includes stints in
Southeast Asia and the USA. His expertise includes audit and business
advisory engagements such as IPO, corporate restructuring, due diligence engagements etc. both local and international. He has diverse
professional experience in the oil and gas, IPP, automotive, oilfield
services, healthcare, plantation, toll operations, food & beverage, construction and property development sectors and has handled various
assignments for both multinational corporations (Fortune 500 companies) as well as several public-listed companies on Bursa Malaysia.
He is a member of The Malaysian Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (MICPA) and also served as Project Leader of Extractive
Industries for the Malaysian Accounting Standards Board. Commenting
on his appointment, Johan said, “It’s an honour to be given the opportunity to serve and I will do my best to contribute to the accounting
profession”. For the complete listing of MIA Council Members, please
visit www.mia.org.my. n

A key element in the world of publishing is what readers have to say. We want to hear from you on just about anything that
appears in each issue of Accountants Today. Why not drop us a line now? e-mail: communications@mia.org.my
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president’s message

Committed to change

M

in an environment where accounting
alaysia is in the throes of transstandards are fluidly changing and
formation to becoming a highbecoming increasingly complex.
performing and high-value
MIA has also proposed to the AGO
added nation. Since the government
that MIA be empowered to approve
and the country are openly embracauditors’ eligibility to practise. However,
ing positive change, I believe it is also
this motion will take time to implement
synergistic for MIA to leverage this
as the current approving process and
window of opportunity to initiate our
regulations will need to be amended. In
own transformation, as I have said in
the interim, MIA is assisting members
previous messages.
by running preparatory courses to preSince last year, the Malaysian
pare for the interview to be approved
Institute of Accountants (MIA) has
auditors; as a result, passing rates have
been working diligently and in close
risen from about 30% to 50%.
consultation with the AccountantWe are also working to improve the
General’s Office (AGO) to act on the
recognition of MIA’s membership as
motions which were passed at last
proof of members’ competency to pracyear’s Annual General Meeting. As
tise in areas that already fall under the
most of the motions seem to reflect
purview of accountants, such
the recommendations of the
as taxation and the upcomWorld Bank’s Report on the
ing GST (Goods and Services
Observance of Standards and
We have taken into account members’ wish that
Tax). This would eliminate
Codes (ROSC) for the accountany amendments to the Accountants’ Act 1967 will
the administrative hurdles and
ing and auditing sector, I am
only be proposed with their approval, to safeguard
additional compliance costs of
optimistic that the intent of
members’ interests. It is expected that many
applying for separate approvthese motions, if not the speamendments to the Act will be proposed by the MOF als for tax practitioners, for
cifics, would be reflected in
example.
the overall review of the MIA’s
committee.
Last but not least, and in
structure as recommended by
line with members’ wishes,
the ROSC. Altogether there
work is in progress to facilitate
MIA Council Members from July to
were ten motions; nine were
the amendment of the appointment of
September for continuity and to ensure
passed and one withdrawn.
the proxy form to ensure that proxies
that outgoing Council Members can
I am pleased to report that the
do not abuse the proxy voting mechabe accountable for their performance
Ministr y of Finance (MOF) has
nism.
at the annual general meetings of the
formed a Country Action Plan comOn behalf of MIA, I will continue to
Institute.
mittee in response to the ROSC. The
keep members updated on the status of
We have taken into account memcommittee is entrusted to develop
these motions. As the implementation
bers’ wish that any amendments to the
strategic proposals to strengthen the
of most of these motions will need the
Accountants’ Act 1967 will only be proaccountancy profession in the country.
concurrence of the Minister of Finance,
posed with their approval, to safeguard
MIA is represented in the committee
we will continue to engage the relevant
members’ interests. It is expected that
and therefore motions involving the
authorities for this purpose. But let us
many amendments to the Act will be
structure of MIA will be tabled to the
not forget that any reform of MIA to
proposed by the MOF committee. The
committee as the basis of instituting
make it a better membership body must
committee expects to consult all relchange to MIA.
also take into account public interest.
evant stakeholders, especially MIA
The Council is also working on
Let us all endeavour to work together to
members, in considering any proposal.
motions that need not wait for the MOF
improve MIA, and in turn optimise the
Meanwhile, we are “beefing up” our
committee. For example, we are trying
potential of the Malaysian accountancy
technical resources, in order to deliver
to work out with the AGO on revising
profession. n
better technical support to members
the retirement dates for the appointed

‘‘
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24 & 25 JUNE 2013 | KUALA LUMPUR CONVENTION CENTRE

MANAGING THE
TAX ECOSYSTEM

Official Opening by:
Minister of Finance

*HRDF claimable under the SBL Scheme,
subject to HRDB’s approval.

The Inland Revenue Board of Malaysia (IRBM) and the Chartered Tax Institute of Malaysia (CTIM) will be co-hosting the National
Tax Conference for the 13th successive year on 24 – 25 June 2013 at the Kuala Lumpur Convention Centre, Kuala Lumpur.
This conference will provide a good platform for interaction and building mutual understanding amongst key players in the tax
arena; taxpayers, tax practitioners, tax administrators and tax policy makers.
The theme of this year’s conference is “Managing the Tax Ecosystem” and will bring tax experts from various fields to discuss
topical issues in taxation. The chairmen / speakers /panelists of the conference are drawn from government and private sectors.
The key conference topics are:
• Economic Challenges for Malaysia
• Tax Crime
• Tax Offences Leading to Criminal Investigation
• Tax Cases Update
• Practical Implementation to the Transfer Pricing Rules and Regulations
• Limitation of Tax Avoidance
• Round Table Discussion on Current Issues Affecting Taxpayers
Conference Secretariat
Chartered Tax Institute of Malaysia
B-13-1, Block B, 13th Floor, Unit 1
Megan Avenue II No. 12, Jalan Yap Kwan Seng
50450 Kuala Lumpur, MALAYSIA

Contact Person
Ms Yus / Ms Fadeah / Mr Jason / Ms Ally
Tel : 03-2162 8989 Ext 121 / 113 / 108 / 123
Fax : 03-2161 3207 / 2162 8990
E-mail : ntc@ctim.org.my, cpd@ctim.org.my
Website : www.ctim.org.my

Akademi Percukaian Malaysia, LHDNM
Persiaran Wawasan
43650 Bandar Baru Bangi
Selangor, MALAYSIA

Contact Person
Mr Zura Zuwan / Mr Hapiz
Tel : 03-8924 3792 / 03-8924 3642
Fax : 03-8925 7005
E-mail : ntc@hasil.gov.my
Website : www.hasil.gov.my
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REGISTER NOW! Visit www.ctim.org.my and/or www.hasil.gov.my to view the full brochure.
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Empowering
Audit Committees
Nazatul Izma

Audit committee members are
the key to effective corporate
governance, given that the
audit committee is an essential
component in the structure of
organisations, especially in public
interest entities (PIEs) and in listed
companies.
Unfortunately, the majority
of audit committee members in
Malaysia may face difficulties in
discharging their responsibilities
amidst a landscape that is becoming
increasingly regulated and complex.
It is also critical to improve the
performance of the internal audit
function to support the audit
committee in discharging its
oversight and governance effectively.

ll

Panellists of the session “Boiler Plate Statements? A Thing of the Past”
(L-R):Wee Hock Kee, Managing Partner CG Board Asia Pacific; Datin
Josephine Low; Lee Min On (Moderator), Christina Foo, Managing
Director, Priority One Consultancy Services and Fazlur Rahman Ebrahim,
Board Member, Securities Commission Malaysia.

T

o remedy this, the Malaysian Institute of
Accountants (MIA) together with the Institute
of Internal Auditors Malaysia (IIA Malaysia)
recently organised the inaugural Audit
Committee Conference themed “Powering
for Effectiveness”, which attracted over 140 participants.
ll Issues and Concerns with the Statement on
Risk Management & Internal Control
Datin Josephine Low, President of IIA Malaysia, emphasised that “the audit committee’s role in ensuring
accurate and transparent disclosure is more important
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today than it has ever been.” One of the most important elements of disclosure relates to the Statement on
Risk Management & Internal Control: Guidelines for
Directors of Listed Issuers (Guidelines) that was issued
on 31 December 2012.
This statement “sets out the obligations of management and the board of directors with respect to
risk management and internal control. It also provides
guidance on the key elements needed in maintaining a
sound system of risk management and internal control,
and describes the process that should be considered in
reviewing its effectiveness,” she explained.

Empowering Audit Committees

Datuk Nasir delivering his keynote address.

officer (CEO) on risk management and
internal controls.
Another concern is the authorship of
the internal control and risk management
statement. Lee noted that the statement
should be the responsibility of the board
and management, and should definitely
not be penned by the external auditors
or the internal auditors. After all, how can
the latter craft a document for which they
will be providing assurance?
The panellists also warned boards
about the risk of boiler plate statements.
The issue with copying and pasting statements from other companies is the risk
of making misleading statements. Lee
advised companies to amend borrowed
statements according to their own circumstances. “When you say “I think I
have this” or “I may have this”, this is
where the danger lies. If you don’t have
it, then disclose the non-compliance and
disclose the alternatives that you have for
risk management and internal controls.”

Low also stressed that the board
should get assurance from the
chief financial officer (CFO)
and the chief executive officer
(CEO) on risk management and
internal controls.
So what elements should be disclosed
in the statement? Lee Min On, Partner,
KPMG, said the answer lies in Paragraph
40 of the guidelines which states that disclosure must be sufficient and informative enough to enable the investor to
make an assessment of the system of risk
management.
“You must discuss the measures
that you have put in place to meet the
requirements of risk management,” Low
elaborated. “If you don’t have these and
therefore can’t disclose them, it is then
management’s responsibility to provide
options. There must be some kind of
processes put in place to mitigate risk.”
Low also stressed that the board should
get assurance from the chief financial
officer (CFO) and the chief executive

Attendees of the Audit Committee Conference 2013.
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Empowering Audit Committees

Datuk Shahril (left) sharing his views during one of the sessions.
Perhaps the best person to craft a
statement of internal control might be the
company secretary or chief governance
officer, since he or she would be heavily
involved with the company’s corporate
governance processes. It would also be
preferable for the CFO to be involved
in writing it since he would know the
financial implications of the company’s
risk management and internal control
systems, noted the panellists.

Internal audit’s independence
should enable the function to
provide effective assurance to
the governing body and senior
management on whether
the organisation’s risks are
being identified and mitigated
adequately.

ll Empowering Audit Committees
Many of the panellists at the MIA/
IIAM event agreed that audit committee
directors now have to undergo intensive
training and development in order to
discharge their duties. Speaking on the
complexity of accounting and financial
reporting standards, Datuk Shahril Ridza
Ridzuan, Employees Provident Fund
(EPF) Deputy Chief Executive Officer
(Investment) warned board audit committee members that there was “no short
cut and you must put in your own time to
understand the standards.”
He also urged audit committee directors to engage closely with the external auditors. Among measures that they
should take are to run through the standards being used with the external audits

– “the audit committee should sit with
the external auditors to ascertain that
the numbers being generated are reasonable and demand disclosure if there are
any shortcomings in the figures. The
audit committee should also be able to
challenge the external auditors and the
accountants on how the standards are
being applied.” Being able to do this
would of course require extensive technical knowledge, which most audit committee directors currently lack.
Beyond this, the audit committee
should also entrust the external auditors with assessing the capability and
strength of the chief financial officer and
his team – “ask the external auditors
to perform a health check and ask the

10
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CFO how gaps are being filled,” recommended Shahril.
Since audit committee members nowadays face great personal, reputational
and even litigation risks, they were urged
to be more selective in taking on audit
committee directorships. Do in-depth
research into the company and look out
for the red flags, warned Shahril. Analyse
the history of the company – if there is a
high turnover of CFOs and finance people this might indicate that they are being
pressured into doing things that they
don’t agree with. Check out the internal
audit records – are there many complaints from internal audit staff? And test
if the shareholders are open to criticism
and can accept your recommendations
for mitigating risks. Remember too that
smaller companies tend to have fewer
resources and may be family-dominated,
which makes it difficult for directors to
have an independent voice. Generally,
it is easier to be an audit committee or
independent director in companies with
larger market capitalisations because
they usually have better governance and
resources, said Shahril.

Empowering Audit Committees

ll Empowering the Internal Audit
Function
Theoretically, audit committees can
rely on internal auditing as a valuable
resource to help them carry out their
oversight responsibilities. Internal audit’s
independence should enable the function to provide effective assurance to the
governing body and senior management
on whether the organisation’s risks are
being identified and mitigated adequately.
Does this actually work in practice?
For internal audit to function optimally,
there is an onus on the board audit committee to create a climate where internal
audit can work independently and report
independently to the board audit committee, said Shahril. This state of independence is difficult to create and to sustain. “It
is difficult to maintain a distance between
management and the board audit committee and internal audit, so it is important

to create a system where these issues
can be raised,” he said. Audit committees
should also refrain from assuming that
management has disclosed everything to
the internal auditors.
It is also essential to determine the
competencies and capabilities required
of internal auditors in order to ensure
effective support is given to independent
directors. Abdul Rahim Abdul Hamid,
then Vice-President, MIA, noted that
whether internal audit is ready for the
job depends on the quality and calibre
of the head of internal audit. “The chief
of internal audit is a very key person. Is
he highly qualified? Is he a member of
the global Institute of Internal Auditors
(IIA) because IIA has standards for internal auditors?” Rahim also said that it is
important to elevate the internal status of
the internal audit function and its chief.
“Create an environment where he (the

head) is seen to be a VIP. Everybody in
the company will then look to him for
issues of governance.”
Unfortunately, in the absence of uniform and mandatory global standards
for internal audit, it can be difficult to
police the quality of internal auditors.
To strengthen the internal audit function
further and circumvent the absence of
formal regulation for internal audit practitioners, Datuk Nasir recommended that
MIA and IIA Malaysia “work hand in hand
to come up with a control framework to
regulate the internal audit function, in
order to enforce an accepted standard
of competency in line with global benchmarks.” The MIA President also acknowledged that companies will initially face
challenges and constraints due to scarce
resources and, in turn may have to resort
to outsourcing or co-sourcing the internal
audit function.

ll Future Events

En. Rahim (2nd from left) making his point.

While this was an excellent first effort to promote
the visibility and concerns of the internal audit
function and board audit committees, Low said
that it would be constructive for IIA Malaysia
and MIA to collaborate on future events such
as the Audit Committee Conference that will
help promote good corporate governance in
Malaysia. Datuk Nasir recommended that this
Audit Committee Conference be held annually
to provide audit committee members with their
own dedicated platform to address issues related
to board level governance and oversight. This
would be synergistic with MIA’s vision to deliver
high-value added training and development that
is tailored to the specific requirements of MIA’s
diverse members. n
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Tomorrow’s firm and
the role of value pricing
Ronald J. Baker

Andreas Noodt, member of the IFAC SMP Committee,
interviews Ronald J. Baker, founder of the VeraSage Institute
and champion of value pricing.

I

n a late-2012 poll conducted
by IFAC, pressure to lower fees
was identified by practitioners
as one of the biggest challenges
facing their small and medium-sized
accounting practices (SMPs). For some
service offerings, like business advisory,
the traditional hourly billing model may
place a strain on the practice. Value
pricing – which sets prices primarily,
but not exclusively, on the value to the
customer rather than on the cost of
the service or historical prices – may be
part of the solution to alleviating this
pressure.

12

accountants today | March / April 2013

Tomorrow’s Firm and the Role of Value Pricing

Ron Baker :

Ron Baker is known for his quest to “bury the billable hour and trash the timesheet.” Along with six
best-selling books, he founded VeraSage Institute,
dedicated to helping professional firms become “free
and independent from the tyranny of time.” Andreas
Noodt, member of the IFAC SMP Committee and
practitioner at FIDES, a German Praxity member
firm,recently caught up with Ron for an interview.

Overall, I’m encouraged by the progress we’ve been
able to make. We are trying to diffuse a new theory
into the accounting profession, which is measured in
decades – sometimes centuries, as with germ theory
in the medical profession – so I’m encouraged, while
admitting we have a long way to go. At least the billable hour and timesheet are now on the defensive.

Andreas Noodt :

Andreas Noodt :

Ron, you’ve been pursuing your worldwide quest to
bury the billable hour and timesheets for the purpose
of pricing for over 17 years now. What changes have
you seen in that time?

In your latest book, Implementing Value Pricing: A
Radical Business Model for Professional Firms, you
propose a new business model. But first let us understand your definition of a business model, and your
criticism of the traditional firm business model.
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Tomorrow’s Firm and the Role of Value Pricing

Ron Baker:
A business model is how your firm creates value for clients and how you capture
a portion of that value, so it’s inextricably linked to your pricing strategies.
Throughout my accounting career, I was
taught the following business model,
which I think of as serving “The Firm of
the Past”:
Revenue = People Power x
Efficiency x Hourly Rate
There are several problems with this
theory. First, once firms pass breakeven,
it gives them a false sense that any revenue is good. Consequently, they accept
low-value clients, taking up a firm’s precious capacity, and preventing it from
reserving capacity for its most valuable
clients.
Second, the way most firms were
built in the last century was by leverag-
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ing people hours – the pyramid structure. As technology arrived – especially
when the computer hit the desktop – the
pyramids began to flatten. Most firms,
however, still put revenue before capacity, always playing catch-up to the workflow and client demand. This inhibits
innovation, client service, investments
in CPE [continuing professional development] etc.
Third, most firms focus on efficiency
by measuring utilisation rates and billable
hours. Yet, if you study statistics going
back seventy years, you’d find utilisation rates and billable hours are within a
very tight range. So, whether firms are
using a quill pen or a laptop computer,
they can charge only so many hours in
a year. The theory also compels leaders
to believe efficiency is the talisman of
running a profitable firm. This is demonstrably false. I’m sure the buggy-whip
manufacturers were a model of efficiency

before they were replaced by the automobile. What if you are efficient at doing the
wrong things?
Last, the hourly rate. The profession
has taught approximately three generations of accountants the only thing they
sell is their time. This is nonsense, for a
very fundamental reason – no client buys
time. How can you sell something the client doesn’t buy?

Andreas Noodt:
In what ways is your new business model
different? Why is it better?

Ron Baker:
The old model doesn’t explain why firms
are successful, nor does it offer viable
alternatives to leveraging the critical
success factors in an intellectual capital
economy – it is suboptimal. The new business model for “The Firm of the Future”
is more optimal:

Tomorrow’s Firm and the Role of Value Pricing

Profitability = Intellectual
Capital x Effectiveness x Value
Price
This theory has many advantages
over the old one. First, rather than focusing on revenue, the firm is forced to
think about the profitability of each client. Not all clients are created equal.
Many firms could stand to lose up to
40-60% of their clients and they’d be
more profitable.
Second, “Professional Knowledge
Firms” (PKFs) don’t sell hours. They create and sell – and their clients buy – intellectual capital (IC). This is a far broader
view than thinking about leveraging people and hours. Apple and Microsoft didn’t
create the wealth they have by pricing by
the hour, and I doubt Steve Jobs and Bill
Gates kept a timesheet.Third, “The Firm
of the Future” will focus on effectiveness, not efficiency. There’s not much the
average firm can do to squeeze another
15-20% efficiency from its human capital,
which is based on fallible human beings
after all, not machines.
If you study surveys of how clients
select – or fire – their accountants, efficiency and price is never mentioned. It
is almost always because of outstanding
service, or lack of service. You can’t
provide outstanding service if you are
focused on nothing but billable hour quotas and tedious efficiency metrics.
Last, PKFs need to recognise they
are businesses, which have prices, not
hourly rates. You’d never fly an airline
that tried to charge you $4 per minute –
and sent you the bill based on the flight
time after the flight. PKFs need to start
pricing upfront for everything they do,
period. No more excuses. Fortunately, in
thousands of PKFs around the world – in
all sectors, from advertising agencies to
law, accounting, and IT firms – this is
beginning to happen.

Ron Baker:
A firm’s IC consists of three components:
1) human capital – its people, comprising 80% of developed countries wealth,
according to the World Bank; 2) structural capital – its systems, proprietary
software, checklists, resources, etc.; and
3) social capital – clients, vendors, suppliers, referral sources, alumni, alliances,
etc. These components are the real levers
of profitability in any PKF, not hours.
Moreover, only the structural capital is
owned by the firm – PKFs are the ultimate asset-less organisations.
IC is what economists call a non-rival
asset – meaning you can transfer knowledge and it doesn’t diminish (you both
now have it). In fact, it grows in usefulness as more people possess it and add
to it. In contrast, a rival asset can only be
used for one function at a time – if I give
you the tie off my shirt, now you have
it and I don’t. A billable hour is a rival

asset – we can only do one thing at a time.
This is a very limiting source of leverage
around which to build a business model.

Andreas Noodt:
How would you respond to those that
claim that what you describe has limited
global applicability, it being suited more
to the likes of North America, the UK,
and Australia?

Ron Baker:
While I accept that the accountancy market and prevailing cultural, legal, and
business norms vary from country to
country, I am sure practitioners everywhere can relate to IC and recognise the
increasing globalisation of the market for
accountancy services. When it comes to
the finer points of implementing the new
model, in particular value pricing, then
we may find some differences.
At VeraSage, we believe this model is
superior to, and will eventually supplant,
the old model. Eliminating the billable
hour and timesheets may not be within
reach, but it is definitely within sight. n
Copyright© January 2013 by the
International Federation of Accountants
(IFAC). All rights reserved. Used with
permission of IFAC. Contact permissions@
ifac.org for permission to reproduce, store,
or transmit this document.

Andreas Noodt:
Would you elaborate on the concept of
intellectual capital and discuss it in the
context of accounting practices?
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XBRL

Challenges

and Best

Practices

As Malaysia accelerates
towards XBRL reporting, it is
high time for accountants to seriously
look into XBRL best practices and
challenges. At the same time, it is
imperative to pay attention to choosing
the right XBRL service provider.
Patricia Francis

M

alaysia is in the process of
making XBRL or eXtensible Business Reporting
Language obligatory for corporate filings similar to US, Japan and
other leading countries.
As explained in previous articles,
XBRL provides a framework for defining and sharing information, changing
internal business requirements and
processes as well as external mandates
from governing bodies. Ultimately, it will
impact the manner in which businesses,
governmental bodies and individuals
interact.
Nevertheless, there are many who still
question and debate the usefulness of the
XBRL coding language. Understandably,
they are wary of the required learning
curve. But a useful comparison would
be the impact of the internet. Looking
back in time, those who searched the
internet in its early days found it cumbersome and thus useless. But now, it has
become impossible to live without. Like
the internet previously, we are still in the
early stages of XBRL but the benefits of
XBRL structured data will eventually be
realised.
How can businesses smooth the path
to XBRL adoption? Below are some tips
on getting ready for XBRL adoption in
terms of the challenges, best practices
and guidelines. Businesses are encour16
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aged to prepare early because the XBRL
reporting requirement will soon be in
effect. Sooner or later, companies will
need to begin publishing their statements
in XBRL format.
The Challenges
Similar to other global convergence
processes, there are initial significant
short-term challenges posed by XBRL
adoption and usage. Amongst the minor
challenges involved with XBRL adoption
are:

Resistance to change - The main
challenge that you may face with the
move to XBRL would involve the change
itself. There is always resistance to

change in any instance as the thought
of giving up something which is familiar for something new is often met
with some level of reluctance. When
Sarbanes Oxley (SOX) was introduced,
companies were strongly against it as
they could not see the full benefits of
such a measure. The same resistance
was faced when Basel II came into
place.
Solution - Instead of resisting the
change that is surely to come, it is better
for accountants in both large and small
companies to make an informed choice
now; start investing some time in gaining
sufficient knowledge on XBRL to position
yourselves and gain advantage over your
competitors.

XBRL – Challenges and Best Practices

Education and training - Many are
still uninformed and not “XBRL-aware”
including those in key stakeholder
groups, such as the investors, filers and
analysts. Education is much needed within these affected business communities
as they are still unaware of XBRL, what
it means, its benefits and how it affects
them. It is critical for more resources

taxonomies (when they are released)
to audited financial data or “tagging”
may be a challenge. Accounting and
finance personnel must learn to marry
correct accounting with a language
made expressly for transmitting financial and other business reporting data.
If the underlying accounting standard is
tagged wrongly, then the filing will also
be incorrect. Sound accounting skill is
needed to ensure that tags are properly
assigned.
Solution: Companies may need to
look into creating a separate audit procedure whereby the independent auditor
ensures correct tagging. Alternatively,
hire a third party consultant for a hasslefree tagging experience.

Instead of resisting the change that
is surely to come, it is better for
accountants in both large and small
companies to make an informed
choice now; start investing some time
in gaining sufficient knowledge on
XBRL to position yourselves and gain
advantage over your competitors.
to be placed into education and training, especially for accounting and finance
personnel who will need to file XBRL
reports. Terminologies and mechanics
can appear to be quite intimidating and
the learning curve might be steep at first
but akin to the implementation of SOX or
Basel II. XBRL skills are in short supply
so organisations will have to invest in
education.
Solution: Preparers who gain an early
and in-depth understanding of XBRL terminology, taxonomies and the implications of XBRL will greatly mitigate the
risks associated with XBRL adoption.

Tagging - Correctly applying Malaysian
Financial Reporting Standards (MFRS)

Extensions - There is a disparity in
views related to a company’s ability to
create new tags. XBRL allows companies
to customise and create new tags when
they prepare their financial statements.
Numerous additional tags could make the
information more relevant and reflective of
a company’s financial position, but could
also make it much less comparable to similar companies without similar additional
information. This could prove to be a key
challenge to users, particularly analysts,
who may be sceptical in analysing the
extensions as more time will be required.
Solution: Regulators may choose to not
allow extensions similar to the scenario
in US to increase comparability in the
data collected.

Cost - Costs, for some of the smaller
companies, will be relatively more significant than for the larger ones. Larger companies generally have more resources
in the finance and accounting function
and may be able to implement it more
efficiently and cost-effectively via internal
training and concurrent test runs.
Solution: Companies are encouraged
to put effort into understanding XBRL
in the initial days as this will help in
reducing the cost of XBRL adoption and
transition over the next several years as
XBRL-tagged data becomes usable and
useful.
Choosing the right tools – As the
market is at a preliminary stage, tools for
generating and using XBRL are still limited. Many companies are still developing
XBRL tools that have yet to be tested.
Hence, companies may not have much of
a choice in selecting the most appropriate
applications.
Solution: It may be better to pay a little extra to an international company for
a well-developed product that has been
used globally.
Best Practices
In order to mitigate the initial challenges
outlined above and avoid making mistakes along the way, here are 15 best
practices to consider while preparing for
XBRL:
• Start now - Starting early will allow
time for the inevitable learning curve
as your mandatory implementation
date will arrive sooner than you think.
• Reporting ownership - Ensure that
management is aware that the ownership of XBRL submissions belongs to
the company and not the outsourcing
vendor.
• XBRL is not an IT process - Educate
management to understand that XBRL
preparation is an accounting and
reporting process, not an IT process.
• Involve the appropriate implementation team - Involving the appropriate
resources from across your organisation will improve your XBRL implementation experience.
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• Outsource if you choose but don’t
abandon your role - Ensure clear segregation of duties and assignment of
responsibilities (i.e. reporting team,
controller’s office, etc.). You still have
responsibility for XBRL reporting and
the related internal controls even if
you decide to outsource all or part of
your implementation effort. The right
business partner can be very helpful,
but they do not know your company
like you do. The help of third party
consultants may be acquired to assist
with complex technical issues during
in-house preparation, rather than outsourcing the task.
• Thoroughly plan your XBRL implementation - A detailed plan that enables XBRL preparation to occur in
parallel with the manual filing process
needs to be established. A healthy
planning process will provide some
assurance that implementation steps
are adequately covered. Surprises
18
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•

•

may still arise but you will be better
equipped to deal with them.
Establish and monitor controls over
both internal and external processes.
Provide adequate training to internal
experts especially for in-house preparation.
Practice - preparations need to be conducted before the first submission to
regulators. Use that time to make sure
that your processes generate XBRL
exhibits that comply with securities
laws.
Diversify and delegate - Get more than
one internal expert involved in the
mapping and review processes. Do
not rely solely on software validation.
Validate - at all stages of the process
to avoid compounding errors and test
XBRL documents before submission.
Allocate sufficient time - for final
changes and reviews, especially if you
expect last-minute changes in the manual documents before submission.

• Document - the XBRL process and
choices carefully, especially the basis
for mapping accounting concepts to
particular elements. Expect regulatory
reporting to become more frequent
and less paper based. XBRL technology is likely to speed the flow of information and reduce manual reporting.
• Be careful with taxonomy extension - Too many custom elements
can reduce the comparability of your
XBRL reports with others in your
industry. Taxonomy extension is fine,
but only when there is no standard
taxonomy element that accurately provides the context for your data.
• Explore ways to utilise XBRL internally and externally - XBRL is a powerful information-sharing tool that can
reduce human intervention, improve
information accuracy, perform data
validation, streamline movement
through the reporting cycle and
organise business information. n

XBRL – Challenges and Best Practices

How to Select a Service Provider
Companies can smooth over the challenges in the teething process and ease the adoption of best practices if they consider the following
guidelines in selecting a prospective service provider:
Experience

Assess the experience in handling XBRL implementation and the kind of services offered by the service providers.
The types of offerings provided by the service provider can be a good indication of its knowledge in the XBRL space.
Find out the number of years in which the service provider has been in existence and years involved in XBRL.

XBRL Team

Determine the number of competent permanent employees in the service provider’s XBRL team.
Companies should check on the team’s qualifications and accreditation in regards to the prior experience in the XBRL
conversion process
Companies to enquire if the service provider has a separate team or consultant to review the tagging quality

Client references

Companies to obtain existing client lists from the service providers for credibility check
Companies may choose to speak to at least two references, which are clients for whom the service provider has
converted financial reports into XBRL. Reference sites can provide you with an assurance about the competence and
quality of an XBRL service provider.

Professional Fees

Professional XBRL conversion fees are based on the time spent on the conversion process. The amount of additional
information required for accurate conversion and filing varies from company to company based on the volume of
data and the level of complexity especially when the conversion includes information other than that provided in
the Annual Report.
The tagging effort, in the case of two companies with a similar number of pages in their Annual Report can vary as
drastically as from 50% to 100%.

GET READY! XBRL offers major
benefits at all stages of business reporting and
analysis:
l Streamlines existing, manual reporting
and review process and controls through
automation
l Provides a higher level of effectiveness
in information aggregation, analysis, and
distribution
l Heightens internal transparency within an
enterprise
l Source validation and analysis improves the
quality of company disclosure
l Improves transparency and reuseability of
company disclosures
l Enhances the reporting process and controls
agility
l Enhances analytical capabilities
l Reduces the corporate compliance burden
l Makes regulatory processes and outcomes
cost-effective

In a nut
professiona shell, the
conversion is l fee for XBRL
n
on the followormally based
ing factors:
1. Number
of p
annual repor ages in the
t
2. Number
of subsidiarie
s of
the company
3. Volume o
f re
transactions lated party
4. Level of c
om
Financial Sta plexity in the
tements

Patricia Francis is a Financial Consultant and Business lead
for XBRL business solutions for custom codes (a subsidiary of
Mesiniaga Berhad). She can be contacted at patricia.francis@
customcodes.com.my
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What about the
auditors that do
a good job?
Auditors play a significant role in
keeping business accountable, but theirs
is often a thankless task. Regulators and
the media only highlight the failures,
while clients are unlikely to praise them
for a qualified audit opinion.
Dianne Azoor Hughes

I

n the lead-up to half-year reporting season, ASIC’s (the Australian Securities and
Investments Commission) latest Audit
inspection programme report issued in
December 2012 once again focused on areas
that need improvement. There is little said in the
ASIC report about what works well, but then
this is not the regulator’s mandate.
Further, media coverage that heralds a job
well done by auditors is unlikely to sell papers.
In contrast, a modified or qualified auditor’s
opinion is more likely to bring groans of displeasure, rather than appreciation of an early
warning sign that particular issues need urgent
attention.
There is a tension between the regulator
and the auditors, positioned as co-regulators,
which should be understood by the investor
community.
In practice, auditors and the regulator work
well together. There are thousands of audits
completed each year which have minimal public
attention. But it is the few high-profile failures
resulting in significant loss that create the backlash of public opinion and the need to allocate
blame.
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What about the auditors that do a good job?

If business is not going well, who is at
fault? Is the regulator doing its job? Are
the auditors as co-regulators doing their
job? Are directors and managers fulfilling
their responsibilities?

Warning notes
From time to time there is genuine failure in governance, but often there is a
level of economic risk that cannot be
mitigated – except by disclosure in the
notes to the financial statements. These
are the notes which effectively say “buyer
beware!” which need to be identified and
understood, for a proper communication
of the risk.

trast to cash anticipated to flow into the
business in the future, explained by the
value created now.
Determining the legal and constructive obligations associated with transactions entered into by a business is often
not a straightforward task.
The more complex the transaction,
the more complex the estimate of when
an entitlement to profit arises. Estimates,
by their very nature, carry a level of
uncertainty. Actual outcomes will always
vary from the estimated outcome, unless
the future was to unravel exactly as predicted.
No one has a reliable crystal ball.

In practice, auditors and the
regulator work well together.
There are thousands of audits
completed each year which
have minimal public attention.
But it is the few high-profile
failures resulting in significant
loss that create the backlash
of public opinion and the need
to allocate blame.
Businesses generally enter into transactions that will be settled at some time
in the future. Operating profit is based on
the legal and constructive obligations that
are associated with these transactions
rather than the timing of the associated
cash flows.
The cash flow statement provides a
summary of cash movements and shows
the cash inflows and outflows of the business that relate to these transactions
when they actually happen. The cash flow
statement also explains how the cash generated from operations has been used.
It is always interesting to compare
“cash flow from operations” in the cash
flow statement, with “profit” in the statement of comprehensive income as a
prima facie indicator of the cash benefits
flowing into the business now, in con-

The notes to the financial statements
contain a section on “critical accounting
estimates and judgments” that point readers to amounts reported in the financial
statements that have inherent uncertainty.
Half-year financial reports do not
usually contain all the notes that appear
in the financial report for the full financial year. The half-year report is more
likely to reference the notes in the annual report. To understand the potential
uncertainty in the numbers reported
at the half-year, it is necessary to look
back to the critical accounting estimates
and judgments disclosed in the previous
annual report.
The numbers reported need to be
considered in this context.
Financial reports prepared in accordance with IFRS (International Financial

Reporting Standards), based on economic theory, are not factual statements of
events. Rather they present an economic
best-estimate of performance to date.

Estimate vs actual
While preparers of financial statements
continue to grapple with these concepts,
auditors have an even more difficult task
as they have no control over whether or
not an entity will act in accordance with
a stated course of action that underpins
determination of those estimates.
A business plan is not set in concrete
and, from time to time, directors and
managers will change their intentions to
align with changes in the business environment. In fact, we would expect this
type of action from responsive management. However, these types of changes
will almost always have an impact on the
actual economic outcome of a transaction
when compared with the estimated economic performance previously reported.
But in an electronic age, companies
could do a lot more to make complex
information easier to understand for both
auditors and investors. Sequential formats following a paper-based tradition
are not user-friendly. Readers need to
trawl through pages of notes to find the
information they need.
Imagine a financial report where
information was hyperlinked and easily accessible. Imagine hovering over
the reported revenue figure and finding
options which provided access to an analysis of the different sources of revenue,
segment information, the revenue recognition accounting policies and the critical
accounting estimates and judgments in
respect of revenue recognition for different revenue streams.
How much more useful would the
100 pages of information be to readers if
they could navigate through quickly and
easily? The technology is available now. n
Dianne Azoor Hughes is partner, Technical
Standards, at Baker Tilly Pitcher Partners
in Australia. She was previously a member
of the Australian Auditing and Assurance
Standards Board.
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A word about
Islamic Finance: Part II
In this final chapter of a two-part
article on Islamic finance, MASB
staff look at current issues with
applying International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) to
Islamic transactions, and suggest
what the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) can do
to promote IFRS usage by entities
engaged in Islamic finance.
l Convergence, and consequences thereof
Since its inception in 1997, the MASB has had a project on
Islamic financial reporting. Initially, the plan was to develop
an exclusive set of Islamic accounting standards in the style
of the Accounting and Auditing Organisation for Islamic
Financial Institutions (AAOIFI). However, the MASB soon
abandoned this approach as it disagreed with some of the
concepts and principles underlying AAOIFI standards, as well
as to avoid the potential for arbitrage and abuse that could
arise from having separate standards.
Upon deciding that the IFRS-compliant Malaysian
Financial Reporting Standards (MFRS) would apply to Islamic
financial institutions (IFIs) in Malaysia, the MASB had to
further ascertain whether there would be any problems with
interpretation or implementation. Despite years of ignoring
how IFRS would impact Islamic finance transactions, MASB
quickly established itself as a thought leader in this area.After
combing through the entire corpus of IFRS,MASB identified
several areas that appeared to be an ill fit. Happily, many of
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these issues were quickly resolved with the co-operation
of industry players, the accounting fraternity and relevant
regulators.
In this article, MASB staff are pleased to share with
readers some of the current topics in applying IFRS to
Islamic transactions. Readers are advised that as discussions are still ongoing, some of the ideas presented may
change as time goes by.
l Leases: Using things that don’t belong
to you
In almost every class or course on Islamic accounting,
ijarah, or Islamic leasing, is touted as an example of why
IFRS cannot be applied to Islamic financial transactions.
Under the current IAS 17, Leases, a lease must be classified as a finance lease if it “transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset”.A
lease that does not meet this definition is classified as an
operating lease.
Sticklers for semantics argue that in ijaraha the lessee only has usufruct, or right-of-use, over the underlying
asset.The lessee does not obtain ownership of the underlying asset and does not assume “substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership”;therefore ijarah can
never be accounted for as a finance lease.Partly based on
such reasoning, AAOIFI Financial Accounting Standard
(FAS) No. 8, Ijarah and Ijarah Muntahia Bittamleek,
requires all ijarah to be treated as operating leases. But
by that argument, no lease whether Islamic or otherwise
would ever be accounted for as a finance lease because it
is the very essence of leasing that ownership of the underlying asset remains with the lessor.
This leads to the second argument raised by AAOIFI
supporters: if ownership remains with the lessor, then
the lessor must recognise a physical asset – thus furthering the case for operating lease treatment to apply to
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> Under the current IAS 17, Leases,

a lease must be classified as a finance lease if it “transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset”. A lease that does not meet this
definition is classified as an operating lease.

ijarah lessors. However, this tendency
to conflate ownership of an underlying
asset with accounting recognition of a
physical asset ignores an important distinction: there is a big difference between
ownership of an asset to which one has
unrestricted access, and ownership of
an asset where one has transferred the
right-of-use to another party.
Semantics aside, a fixation with
operating leases is potentially dangerous. Operating lease treatment can hide
lease liabilities off the balance sheet.
Under finance lease treatment, a lessee
is required to recognise a lease asset and
(more importantly) lease liabilities from
inception. A lessee under an operating
lease is not required to recognise lease
liabilities.
So why even allow operating lease
classification in the first place? Why
indeed. Conceptually, all leases transfer

to a lessee a right-of-use asset and a
lease payment obligation. But because
it is sometimes difficult to measure how
much of an asset has been transferred
to the lessee, most standard-setters currently allow the simpler operating lease
treatment for insubstantial transfers of
risks and rewards. However, due to a
commitment to conceptual soundness
and concerns of potential abuse, the
IASB is now re-looking at how leases
are accounted for. As of July 2012, IASB
documents released to the public indicate that the upcoming replacement for
IAS 17 may require lessees to recognise
lease liabilities for all but the most insignificant use of a lease asset. For lessees,
the proposals could be the death knell
for operating lease accounting.
What does this mean for ijarah? That
depends on what standards the preparer adopts. For those applying IFRS, we

expect wider reporting of lease liabilities
by lessees with a changed presentation
of their lease assets, for example, items
currently labelled ‘machinery’ may be
described in future as ‘right-of-use of a
machine’. Lessor accounting will see a
dramatic overhaul; IASB staff are currently considering a ‘receivable and residual’ approach where the lessor would
recognise the amount of lease payment
receivable as well as its residual interest
in the leased asset.
MASB staff welcome IASB’s new
approach, and find it more conceptually
compatible with Shariah than the existing IAS 17. Shariah acknowledges that
ijarah is akin to bai’ (sale) of manfaat
(benefit) of an asset to the musta’jir (lessee) while the muajjir (lessor) retains
ownership of the milikasal (underlying
asset). Shariah further recognises that
manfaatismal (an asset) to the lessee.
Moreover, there are well-known Quranic
commandments to record debts owed.
Hence, IASB’s proposal to require lessees to recognise a right-of-use asset and
a lease liability ought to be commendable
under Shariah. And we cannot see why
a lessor should not measure an asset
devoid of its right-of-use differently from
an asset over which it has full rights.
However, for preparers reporting
under AAOIFI standards, it is uncertain to what extent AAOIFI has accepted
or even considered the new conceptual
approach to leases. If AAOIFI maintains
its status quo, the comparability gap with
IFRS would widen further with all ijarah reported as operating leases under
AAOIFI and very few reported as such
under IFRS.
l Investment accounts:
No pain, no gain.
The previous article mentioned how
Islamic banks can accept monies from
customers based on mudarabah and
wakalah. Classically, a person contributing to an enterprise under mudarabah
would be expected to share profits with
the entrepreneur but bear all loses himself; in wakalah, the investing principal
is expected to pay a fee to the party
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acting as agent regardless of how the
investment performs. Clearly, these features create products that are inherently
riskier to the account holder than conventional deposits. To cater for a risk-adverse
clientele, retail banks in Malaysia usually incorporate mechanisms (e.g. setting
aside reserves and obtaining third party
guarantees) to ensure that mudarabah
and wakalah account holders receive consistent returns and capital protection.
Currently, Malaysian banks and their
customers consider these accounts as
deposits; and because banks have taken
on a constructive obligation to customers, they normally present mudarabah
and wakalah accounts in their balance
sheet as liabilities. However, this may
soon change.
It is well-known that the central bank,
Bank Negara Malaysia (BNM) is encouraging Islamic banks to offer mudarabah
and wakalah as ‘investment accounts’
instead of deposits. These investment
accounts are expected to transfer more
risks and rewards to the customer, in line
with classical Shariah rules. Hence, questions abound as to how these investment
accounts would be treated for accounting
purposes.
Under AAOIFI standards, the accounting treatment would depend on whether
the investment account is “unrestricted”
or “restricted”. FAS No. 6, Equity of
Investment Account Holders and Their
Equivalent, defines an unrestricted investment account as an account in which “the
investment account holder authorises the
Islamic bank to invest the account holder’s funds in a manner which the Islamic
bank deems appropriate without laying
down any restrictions as to where, how
and or what purposes the funds should
be invested”. For a restricted investment
account, the account holder “imposes
certain restrictions as to where, how
and for what purpose his funds are to
be invested”. An unrestricted investment
account is classified as its own element of
the balance sheet, between liability and
equity. A restricted investment account is
considered an off-balance sheet item.
Under IFRS, these AAOIFI definitions
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and treatments would not apply. Firstly,
IFRS only recognises three elements
of the balance sheet – asset, liability,
equity – it does not have an intermediary category between liability and equity.
Secondly, IFRS does not attach much
significance to how broad or narrow the
investment mandate is. Instead, an investment account would be reported on the
balance sheet if it gives rise to a liability under IAS 37, Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets, or a
financial liability under IAS 32, Financial
Instruments: Presentation.
If the investment account does not
give rise to a liability for the bank, then
the investment account may be reported
in a separate financial statement. But
the reporting bank must then consider
whether it has control over the investment account, and must consolidate the
investment account if it does. IAS 27,
Consolidated and Separate Financial

Statements, defines control as “the power
to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities”. From 1 January
2013, IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial
Statements will replace IAS 27’s consolidation requirements. IFRS 10 provides
much more detailed guidance on how to
apply the principle of control.
For example, let us say an investment
mandate only allows the funds to be
invested in home financing carried out
by the bank. Under AAOIFI, this limited
mandate may meet the definition of a
restricted investment account, and conceivably the investment account could be
excluded from the bank’s balance sheet.
Under IFRS, this restricted investment
account, even if reported in a separate
financial statement, may be consolidated
if it is determined that the bank controls
it. In this case, there are several indicators that indicate control exists.

> From 1 January 2013, IFRS 10 Consolidated

Financial Statements will replace IAS 27’s consolidation
requirements. IFRS 10 provides much more detailed guidance on how to apply the principle of control.

A Word about Islamic Finance: Part II

Purpose and design of the investment account

Bank’s exposure and rights to variable returns

• The investment account would secure a source of funding for a
principal activity of the bank, i.e. providing home financing.

• The bank may have rights to variable returns that vary as a result
of the performance of the investment account, as in the case of
profits shared under mudarabah and any performance incentive
fees under wakalah.

Relevant activities of the investment and how
decisions about those activities are made
• The investment mandate presumably gives the
bank decision-making power over relevant activities related to the investment, e.g. the selection,
acquisition and disposal of home financing.

Rights of the bank give it the current ability
to direct the relevant activities of the investment account
• The bank may have the practical ability to unilaterally direct the selection, acquisition and disposal of
home financing.

Hence, under IFRS, the labels “unrestricted” and “restricted”, and the transfer
of risk and rewards, are of lesser importance in determining consolidation based
on control.
As a corollary, MASB staff note that
the switch from deposit to investment
account would affect more than just the
financial statement. There are other
implications in terms of governance,
operations and prudential measures.
For example, how would moving these
accounts off balance sheet affect the
bank’s capital requirements, and would
there be mechanisms to ensure the quality of investments made with customer
monies. There is also the matter of consumer perception and preference – how
would they react to a product that transfers more risk to them.
l Qard: A loan. Or is it?
One of the hottest current issues in
Islamic financial reporting does not relate
to banking, but to takaful. The issue is
how to account for qard, an interest-free
loan that a takaful operator extends to its
participants’ funds.
In takaful, individuals do not buy policies from an insurer. Instead, they participate in a fund by pooling their monies
and agreeing to mutually indemnify each
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other should a specified event befall any
one of them. The fund is managed by a
takaful operator, an entity that is usually
licensed under similar circumstances as
an insurer. In many jurisdictions, a takaful operator is required to extend qard if
there is a deficit in the participants’ fund.
In Malaysia, takaful entities have usually presented qard as a loan measured
at cost. This treatment was allowed by
Bank Negara Malaysia under the previous reporting regime, and hence was
readily accepted by stakeholders.
The change over to MFRS/IFRS,
however, has put takaful entities in a
quandary. There is no such thing as a
loan measured at cost under IFRS. At
a glance, qard appears to be a financial instrument subject to IAS 39,
Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement. But under IAS 39, a financial instrument must be measured at
either amortised cost or at fair value;
there is no allowance for measurement
at cost. Moreover, qard does not fit any
of the definitions of the four categories
of financial instruments.
Qard from a takaful operator to a participants’ fund often carry unique terms
that make it different from the financial
instruments under IAS 39. For example,
in many jurisdictions, repayment of qard

Bank’s ability to use its power
over the investment account
to affect the amount of the
bank’s returns
• Of the home financings it processes, the bank may have the ability to decide which ones would be
financed from its own resources
and which ones from the fund
such that it can affect the income
it receives.

is subordinated to other debts of the participants’ funds. Hence, it could be said
that qard represents a residual interest
in the participants’ fund. This feature
may render qard more similar to equity
rather than a financial asset to the takaful operator. Thus, there is an alternative
view that qard should be classified similar
to investment in a subsidiary under IAS
27, Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements.
Joining the furore are those who
think qard should simply be expensedoff. There is a classical view that while
repayment of qard is welcomed, it is not
expected; this is especially true of qardhasan, a benevolent interest-free loan.
Hence, some consider qard to be part
and parcel of the expenses incurred in
running a takaful operation.
As of July 2012, relevant stakeholders are discussing the treatment of qard.
Many discussants indicate a preference
for classification as investment in a subsidiary, which happily allows qard to continue to be measured at cost. Regardless,
a speedy resolution is required if takaful
entities are to assert compliance with
MFRS/IFRS in their annual financial
statements. And the decision reached
must be defensible to global stakeholders
and observers.

A Word about Islamic Finance: Part II

l What the IASB can
(and must!) do
Readers may have noticed that the discussions about applying IFRS to Islamic transactions are taking place within Malaysian
shores, with little IASB involvement. This
should be a cause for concern.
While we are confident that the
deliberating parties are of the highest
calibre, the fact remains that any resolution made by Malaysian stakeholders
will be exactly that – a Malaysian resolution. No matter how sound our reasoning, the conclusions to these issues
run the danger of being seen as local
interpretations, which are something
disapproved by IASB and the global
investing community. That being the
case, MASB staff believe it is high time
that the IASB itself tackle Islamic financial reporting issues.
In 2011, the IASB issued an agenda

Shariah law” though there is currently
little concrete discussion on the matter.
We, nevertheless, remain optimistic as
we are certain that the IASB simply cannot afford to ignore a USD1 trillion global
industry. n

consultation document asking the public
what they think the IASB should be working on for the next three years. Among
the topics suggested in that document
was Islamic finance. Unfortunately, very
few respondents thought that Islamic
finance should be on IASB’s agenda.
MASB staff, however, are not disheartened and strongly advocate the
establishment of an Islamic finance advisory group to provide IASB with views
and input from industry experts. We envision that the advisory group would be
responsible for providing technical advice
to relevant IASB projects, as well as to
assist IASB in outreach and advocacy to
promote the use of IFRS among entities
engaged in Islamic finance.
At the time of writing, the IASB
has publicly stated that it “supported
… establishing a consultative group to
assist the IASB with matters related to

Manual of accounting
IFRS 2013 Pack
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CSI – Accounting Style
ll
A career in forensic accounting is challenging and never dull,
says Monica Bond, a maestro in global financial investigations
who was recently in town to lecture on Forensic Accounting
and Financial Crime to a select group of MIA members.

W

hat does it take to build a
successful career as a forensic accountant and financial
crime investigator?
Knowledge of psychology, a law qualification, familiarity with global regulations in addition to a sound accounting
qualification are some of the x-factors
for success, according to Monica Bond,
Managing Director of Bond Associates,
a leading firm of accountants involved in
financial investigations, litigation support
and regulatory compliance in all sectors,
including the financial services sector.
Bond herself has specialised in forensic
accounting for nearly thirty years.
ll Marrying Law and
Accounting
A background in law is especially useful
for aspiring forensic accountants, who
typically spend a lot of time giving evidence in court, said Bond, who is a
solicitor, Chartered Accountant and a
Certified Fraud Examiner. “In business,
law and accountancy go very much handin-hand,” she remarked. Bond took an
external part-time law degree (this is her
second degree; her first was in English)
at London University before training as a
Chartered Accountant.
Bond has never regretted making the
move very early on as a junior auditor into
litigation support or forensic accounting,
which has grown to be a very big industry.
“My specialisation in forensic accounting
combined with my love of the law has
dovetailed and enabled me to recover the
money, follow the paper trail, chase the
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fraudster around the world and recover
money for defrauded victims be they individuals or companies,” she enthused.
Today, Bond’s areas of specialisation include fraud prevention, detection,
investigation and recovery; anti-money
laundering; and asset tracing and recovery which is often but not always linked
to fraud recovery. Not only is she widely
regarded as a leading expert in antimoney laundering issues and fraud, but
she is often consulted in cases where
professional negligence is alleged, particularly where accountants are involved.
Corporate governance and compliance
is another of Bond’s strengths; she has
frequently been retained by companies
in the financial services sector to conduct
risk reviews. Bond has been involved in a
number of notable fraud cases throughout her career such as the embezzlement
case of former Iraqi Planning Minister Dr.
Jawad Hashim versus the Arab Monetary
Fund, BCCI, Banco Ambrosiano and the
John Palmer timeshare fraud.
ll Aptitude and Attitude
It is equally important to bring the right
attitudes to the table for success in this
field. “The auditor’s traditional independence, objectivity and integrity – these
states of mind – are essential in forensic
accounting. You have to go about it in
an unbiased manner, professionally and
independently because you might find
that the person under investigation is
actually innocent,” explained Bond.
Forensic accounting also requires a
particular skillset based on the founda-

tion of accounting and auditing skills. “So
many aspects of accounting and auditing training are essential to one’s work
as a forensic accountant,” said Bond.
“Observation, testing, vouching, analytical review, all are used but what is different for forensic accountants compared
to more traditional areas of accountancy
is that we gather evidence from all possible legitimate sources.” In other words,
the traditional accountant primarily looks
at financial records, while the forensic
accountant will look at these in addition to
other sources such as interview evidence
or open source intelligence.
ll Not just Financial
Statement Fraud
Neither is the forensic accountant limited to looking at just financial statement fraud. “Financial statement fraud
does account for the greatest losses to
companies as proven by all the research
but nevertheless the areas of fraud that
are committed within organisations or
externally all come under the scope of the
forensic accountant. Since it’s a very wide
scope, a career in forensic accounting is
very wide-ranging,” she explained.
The diversity of the field in the UK –
where the market for forensics is mature
and very lucrative - is such that forensic
accountants might choose to specialise
in e.g. personal injury work, matrimonial
disputes, share valuations and shareholder
disputes. Bond herself cites financial crime
as one of her major specialisations. “This is
not just a very diverse discipline but a very
high-growth area for forensic accountants.”

CSI – Accounting Style

Monica Bond addressing
her audience.

“Observation, testing, vouching, analytical review, all are used but
what is different for forensic accountants compared to more
traditional areas of accountancy is that we gather evidence from
all possible legitimate sources.” In other words, the traditional
accountant primarily looks at financial records, while the forensic
accountant will look at these in addition to other sources such as
interview evidence or open source intelligence.
She is also very keen on compliance,
risk management and implementing
improvements to controls. “I like to draw
on experiences as a forensic investigator
to improve and put in these controls to
avoid problems ever happening again.”
ll Mitigating Risks
Risk management is a key principle of
Bond Associates’ business model, which
is very selective in the clients it takes on.
“This is my ethos - mitigating my reputational risk and my firm’s reputational risk.
We practice due diligence by knowing
our clients. Our duty to our clients is to
ensure we have the resources and skills
to service them – either by buying-in the
skills or referring them to others,” she
explained.
Meanwhile, there are many risks
for fraud within individual jurisdictions.
Personally, Bond believes that reluctance
to blow the whistle on suspected fraud
may be a key risk factor within Malaysia,
despite excellent whistle-blowing legislation. While Malaysia enjoys top-notch

governance and regulatory frameworks,
it is critical to implement and enforce
controls to build up credibility and confidence among the general population and
among finance professionals, who act as
the gatekeepers to prevent financial and
white-collar crime.
It is important for law enforcement
and regulatory agencies to network with
banks and accountants in order to understand the nature of fraud and thus fraud
prevention. “There has to be a public-private sector partnership. The profession
as gatekeepers has to help the regulatory
and enforcement agencies to understand
what we can see as being a blatant fraud
and how it was committed.”
Meanwhile, organisations can also
manage the risks of fraud by becoming
educated in fraud profiling and psychology. Bond noted that substantial fraud is
committed by employees. “People may
start out as honest but eventually rationalise committing fraud. It is remarkable
how often I see these in my investigations
and interviews. Regrettably, fraud is very

prevalent among senior staff because
they are trained and know how to work
the system.” Apart from rationalisation,
fraud profiles often point to opportunities for fraud as well as pressures on the
employee committing the fraud, such as
financial pressures and pressures to meet
financial performance targets.
Perhaps the key message that she
would like to get across, said Bond, is the
“importance of embedding an anti-fraud
mentality, zero tolerance to bribery and
corruption throughout the organisation.
Tone from the top is key. We must get
buy-in but how do we do that?”
It is especially difficult when the
anti-fraud agenda is being pushed by
internal audit heads to reluctant C-suite
executives and boards of directors. Bond
quipped that she can help clients convince their bosses by “doing a private
highly confidential presentation to senior
management and boards of directors. Let
us show them how they can end up in jail
and that can focus their minds!”
ll Regulation Complications
As the regulatory landscape becomes
more complex, organisations face the risk
of running afoul of new and unfamiliar
laws aimed at prevention of fraud and
corruption. For example, corporations
with linkages to the UK need to be cognisant of the UK Bribery Act, which Bond
regards as the current “gold standard”
with sweeping extra-territorial reach. The
Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act
(FATCA) which targets tax evaders is a
“key growth area for forensic accounting
and is an example of how legislation is
increasing and becoming more draconian,” said Bond. Closer to home, even
pending legislation such as the Malaysian
Personal Data Protection Act which was
slated for implementation on 1 January
2013 provides specific exemption from
data protection rules and requires data
sharing in order to circumvent fraud. n
Monica Bond is the Managing Director of
Bond Associates Limited, based in Canary
Wharf, London. She can be reached at
mjb@bondadvice.co.uk

March / April 2013 | accountants today

29

governance

The role of ethics in
restoring confidence
Interview with IESBA Chair Jörgen Holmquist

J

örgen, in an IFAC News interview from last August when
you became the first independent chair of the International
Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants [IESBA], you indicated that
the board has a clear role to play in
responding to the global financial crisis,
specifically in terms of helping to restore
the reputation of the profession. Since the
crisis, regulators and other policymakers have been actively exploring ways to
enhance audit quality, including measures to increase the transparency of the
audit process and to further safeguard
auditor independence. At the same time,
we have continued to witness a number
of high profile accounting frauds in some
jurisdictions. Some have said that the
global financial crisis has led to a crisis of
confidence in the accountancy profession.
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How can the IESBA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants [the
Code] help to restore the reputation
of the profession?

JH

: While the profession has not
received as much criticism as the
rating agencies and banks in relation to
the global financial crisis, the profession
is certainly not viewed as favourably as it
was five years ago and there is still much
work to be done. What many people outside of IFAC’s membership may not know
is that professional accountants are committed to abiding by strict ethical requirements – the Code presents an internationally robust and comprehensive set
of rules and guidelines for professional
accountants. However, some accountants
may choose not to follow the rules, and
therein lies the problem. A relatively
small number of accountants commit
fraud, but that’s all you hear about in the
news, and they end up hurting not only
those directly involved, but the reputation
of the entire profession.

What can be done about that?

JH

:By increasing awareness of the
Code and continuing to develop
credible, reasonable solutions, we hope
that the general public will come to realise that professional accountants are committed to acting ethically and in the public
interest, and that fraudulent accountants
constitute a small minority.
In some jurisdictions, the ethical
requirements in the Code have been written into laws and regulations. However,
there are some other incentives to follow
the Code, regardless of legal requirements. It is in the best interests of all
professional accountants,as members of
a highly regarded and trusted profession,
to help maintain the reputation of the
profession. There are always going to be
pressures – from management or potential financial gain, for instance – to stretch
or break the rules.

As a global player, we, censof understand the business challenges of your business forefront. We create solutions
with your challenges in mind. Our myriad of innovative financial management solutions, payment gateway services
and investment management solutions software have eased the daily business practices of the Malaysia Inland
Revenue Board, Universiti Putra Malaysia, PERKESO, SIRIM Berhad and MIA. They are at the top with us.
It’s time we do the same for you!

The Role of Ethics in Restoring Confidence

Do you believe that ethics is something that
cannot be taught, that it
is inherent to each individual?

JHhave a personal code of
: I think most people

The Code includes guidance for
professional accountants on how to
deal with those situations. We expect
that they will choose to do the right
thing. Another motivator for firms and
individuals to self-enforce the Code
is that abiding by the Code can help
them improve the consistency of their
services and meet the high expectations of clients and employers.

How can the Code help in this
way?

JH

: As a global set of standards, the Code establishes a
recognised benchmark for consistent ethical behaviour by professional
accountants worldwide. Clients and
employers are rightly entitled to
expect that professional accountants
will act with integrity and objectivity,
exhibit appropriate competence, due
care, and professional behaviour, and
abide by the duty of confidentiality in
carrying out their roles and responsibilities. Ethics standards can help
professional accountants understand
and meet their clients’ and employers’ expectations and therefore better
serve them.
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Do you agree that some of the
recent accounting scandals that
made headline news such as
Olympus in Japan and ERA Mining
Machinery Ltd in China were caused
by compromised ethics?

JH

: First, I should say that I, of
course, do not have all of the
information surrounding the cases
you mention. Much of the information comes from the media. However,
even when the news sources are highly
respected, they may get the facts wrong
or give incomplete coverage of events.
While it looks like poor ethics played a
role, I think it would be oversimplifying
what happened to say that those scandals were caused mainly by a failure of
the professional accountants involved
to comply with ethics standards. To
fully identify the causes would require
a deep understanding of the particular
facts and circumstances and the complexities of what occurred. At the same
time, there is no doubt that those cases
have hurt the standing of the profession in many jurisdictions. But it is
important to distinguish between legal
and ethical issues. Scandals usually
become headlines because of suspected illegal activity – but acting illegally
is of course very unethical.

conduct that they follow and
it’s probably determined by
how they were brought up, the
morals and beliefs that were
instilled in them from a young
age, etc. I feel that ethical conduct is part of a person’s moral
upbringing, so yes, part of it is
inherent.
However, codes and rules in
general, help the individual to
adhere to ethical principles by
supporting their intent to act
ethically and guiding them in
applying general ethical principles with concrete examples.
The IESBA Code sets out the
fundamental principles, a conceptual framework, and specific
prohibitions. All professional
accountants must be aware of
the parts of the Code or their
member body’s Code that are
relevant to their work, which
will be of help to them when
they are facing issues of an ethical nature.

Contact Now

Synergistic Innovations Sdn. Bhd
Email: enquiry@synergistic.com.my
www.synergistic.com.my
Tel: 603 7710 9396
Fax: 603 7728 0069
Go beyond ERP with a business solution from Microsoft
Achieve maximum profitability and growth. You will see
immense improvements in two key areas:
 Inventory/Stock quantity and costing will be more
accurate.
 Credit control will be tighter and cash flow will be
better managed.

Boost productivity, turn insight into action and grow your
business from strength. In its latest form, Microsoft Dynamics
NAV 2013 provides easy-to-use features to be engaged at
your discretion. Rapid implementation tools will help you get
up and running quickly and affordably. This is an ERP for those
who want nothing but the best for their business and business
have blossomed from making Microsoft Dynamics NAV 2013
their dedicated choice.

Can you give us a brief update on what the
IESBA has going on right now?

JH

: We recently released final revised provisions in the Code that address conflicts of
interest, breaches of a requirement of the Code,
and the Code’s definition of the term “engagement
team.” The changes will be effective in 2014.
These projects were closely followed by a number
of stakeholders from the regulatory community, and
I was pleased that we were able to effectively engage
with them through different forums. I was also
pleased that we were able to successfully coordinate with the International Auditing and Assurance
Standards Board [IAASB] in finalising our project
on the definition of engagement team, as this project
was closely linked to the IAASB’s project to revise
its International Standard on Auditing 610, Using the
Work of Internal Auditors.
In relation to our current agenda, we had our
first deliberation last month regarding the significant
comments to our Exposure Draft on responding to
a suspected illegal act, our most important project.
Certainly, there are a number of challenging issues
that respondents have raised. We will work diligently, systematically, and thoroughly through all the
responses as we determine a way forward. We also
discussed a number of new projects and initiatives at
our March meeting. n
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Angel Tax Incentive

to Boost Innovative and Domestic Investments
In tandem with the tenth (10th) Malaysia Plan1 announced right after the New Economic
Model2 (NEM), the 2011 Budget announcement has set the government’s roadmap to
becoming a high-income nation via its four key strategies i.e. reinvigorating private investment, intensifying human capital development, enhancing the quality of life of citizens and
strengthening public service delivery.
MIA Professional Standards and Practices

A

ll these while, tremendous
efforts and initiatives have
been constantly undertaken by the government
authorities to induce foreign
investments into Malaysia. By the same
token, a wide range of tax incentives
have also been initiated to boost domestic
investments. This is especially so with
the implementation of the Economic
Transformation Programme with the aim
to propel Malaysia’s economy into a high
income economy which is self-inclusive3
and sustainable4 where private-sector-led
and government facilitated and innovative, to lift Malaysia’s Gross National
Income to US$523 billion and raise per
capita income from US$6,700 in 2009 to
beyond US$15,000 by 2020, and meeting the World Bank’s threshold for high
income nations.
Recognising that young entrepreneurs always have innovative ideas and
products which can be promoted at the
international level but are constrained
due to lack of capital, the 2013 Budget
announcement launched the Angel
Investor Tax Incentive to lure and stimulate investments in the early stage of a
newly started-up domestic business to
ensure the success of the investment

*

In the Malaysian context,
one of the well-known
Dotcom success stories
which has utilised the
angel investor concept in
establishing its business is
Milkadeal.com.

and the competitiveness of the venture
company. With an incentive, an angel
investor is entitled for tax exemption
equal to the value of investment made
to a venture company in respect of all
his aggregate income but restricted to
80% of the aggregate adjusted income
for each year.
Who is an Angel Investor?
In general terms, an angel investor is an
affluent or high net-worth individual who
provides funding for a business startup, usually in exchange for a share of
ownership equity. It is commonly found
that a small but increasing number of
angel investors organise themselves

into angel groups or angel networks to
share research and pool their investment
capital, as well as to provide consulting
assistance/mentorship to their portfolio
companies. In simpler terms, an angel
investor uses his or her own private funds
to add to the capital needed to start a
business (which may be viewed as a highrisk adventure) in exchange for a fairly
large share of ownership in the company,
usually between 10 - 30%.
The significant contributions of angel
investors have been widely flushed out
in countries like United Kingdom, India,
China and Singapore. In the Malaysian
context, one of the well-known Dotcom
success stories which has utilised the
angel investor concept in establishing its
business is Milkadeal.com.
Qualifying criteria for Angel
Investor Tax Incentive and
Investee Companies
The purpose of the Angel Investor Tax
Incentive is to encourage more angel
investments from the private sector into
early stage companies in technologybased ventures. The exemption granted
in a way is to reduce the risks, if any,
associated with the risk of new start-up
technology companies.

1. The 10th Malaysia Plan is a comprehensive blueprint to allocate the national budget from the year 2011 to 2015 to all economic sectors in Malaysia.
2. The New Economic Model is an economic plan which will be guided by three principles – high income, sustainability and inclusiveness – to drive
the country’s economic progress to become a developed nation.
3. Inclusive means all communities will be able to benefit from the wealth of the country.
4. Sustainable means meeting present needs without compromising future generations.
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Angel Tax Incentive to Boost
Angel Tax Incentive to Boost
Innovative and Domestic
Innovative
Investments
and Domestic Investments
Angel Investor

Investee Companies (IC)

l

Prior to investing, an angel investor is
not associated with the IC

l

A private company incorporated in
Malaysia and at least 51% shares in the IC
are Malaysian owned

l

An angel investor is a tax resident in
Malaysia and either a high net-worth5
individual or high income earner6

l

The core business of the company must
be in qualifying activities approved by the
Ministry of Finance (MOF)

An angel investor must hold up to 30%
shares in the IC for not less than two
(2) years and tax exemption is only
granted on the third (3rd) year of his/
her shareholding

l

Cumulative revenue of less than RM5
million and has been in operation with a
track record of 3 years or less (based on
the latest financial report at the time of
application)

l

All investments in the IC are paid in
cash

l

The IC must not be wound-up and/or in
liquidation

l

An angel investor, often will have sufficient experience in business and investing to do the required due diligence
prior to investing

l

For applications approved by the
Securities Commission (SC) from 1
January 2013 until 31 December 2017

l

The qualifying period to apply as a IC
starts from 1 January 2013

l

Minimum amount of RM5,000 per
investment and up to a maximum of
RM500,000 investment per annum in
total

l

Shall be a maximum of five (5) investment approvals per annum

l

The angel investor must be accredited by the Malaysian Business Angel
Network in order to qualify for the
incentive.

* extracted from Cradle Fund Sdn Bhd’s webpage7

5. Total wealth or net personal assets of
RM3 million and above or its equivalent in foreign currencies.
6. High income earner refers to an individual with a gross annual income
of not less than RM180,000 in the
preceding twelve (12) months; or
jointly with his or her spouse with
gross annual income of RM250,000 in
the preceding twelve (12) months.
7. An agency under the Ministry of
Finance that manages the Cradle
Investment Programme for the purpose of supporting, stimulating
and nurturing the development of
Malaysian entrepreneurship in ICT,
bio-technology and life science, materials science and high growth technology
industries towards the generation of
an innovative knowledge-based society
and economy.

March / April 2013 | accountants today

35

Angel Tax Incentive to Boost
Innovative and Domestic Investments

What are the essential differences between an Angel Investor and a Venture Capital Company?
In general, an angel investor makes his/her own decisions as opposed to a venture capital company which operates with a board or
group of people making decisions for investors that have pooled money together. Angels tend to be more involved in the businesses
that they invest in and provide assistance in ways that venture capital companies do not. In Malaysia, angel investor and venture
capital companies look similar in the areas of investing but may differ in certain aspects:

Angel Investor

Venture Capital Company **

Definition An affluent or high net-worth individual who provides Company incorporated under the Companies Act 1965, investcapital for a company at an earlier stage of development ing in a venture company in the form of seed capital, start-up or
early stage financing and that is registered with the Securities
who may not invest for a living.
Commission (SC).
Areas of The funding provided for early-stage technology-based The financing provided for seed, start-up or early
focus companies with innovation approved by MOF such as:
stage must be:
l

Advanced electronics and information technology;
Telecommunications;

l

Equipment/instrumentation, automation and flexible manufacturing systems;

3

pioneer status or investment tax allowance incentive by
MIDA or MITI;

l

Healthcare;

3

high technology by MIDA;

l

Electro-optics, non-linear optics and optoelectronics;

3

MSC status by MDeC;

l

Advanced materials;
Transportation;

3

Financial assistance from Small or Medium Industrial
Development Corporation;

l
l
l
l

l

promoted products or activities under the Promotion of
Investment Act 1986 where the venture company has been
granted incentives such as:

Value-add services; and
Emerging technologies.

l

Technology-based activities or other activities or products specified in the VCI Guideline8.

An accredited angel investor will allow tax exemption
equal to the value of investment made to a venture
company in respect of all his aggregate income but
restricted to 80% of the aggregate adjusted income
for each year.

l

A VCC may apply for tax exemption for a period of 10 years
or lesser; or a tax deduction for an amount equivalent to the
value of investment made in a venture company, subject to
the fulfilment of criteria set under the VCI Guidelines.

Conclusion
For businesses which are at an early
stage or growth prospects are currently
modest, angel financing may be the
best alternative. All in all, the goals
and vision of the investors is by far
the most important in arriving at whatever decision to be made. After all, the
move towards enhancing angel investor
augurs well for the technopreneurship
start-up eco-system in the country. n

** extracted from Venture Capital Incentive Guideline (VCI Guideline) issued by Securities Commission Malaysia
8. Please refer to Venture Capital Tax Incentives Guidelines for clarifications which can be accessed at the link www.sc.com.my. The Guidelines set out the
types of incentives available for the venture capital industry, the qualifying criteria or requirements which must be fulfilled before a certification can be
granted and the procedures for application.
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Looking ahead to 2050
Global economic centre of gravity shifts, but even emerging
economies face growth challenges, says PwC.

By 2050:
q China, US, India to
be the three largest
economies by far
q Indonesia, Nigeria and
Vietnam could climb
strongly
q Brazil could overtake
Japan to be the fourth
largest economy
q Turkey could emerge
as one of the largest
European economies

T

he global financial crisis has accelerated the shift of the economic
centre of gravity, with China, the
US and India set to be the three
major economies by 2050; but the emerging economies do face major challenges
in their bid to sustain their recent strong
growth. These are just two findings from
the latest ‘World in 2050’ report published
by PwC’s macroeconomics team.
The original PwC ‘World in 2050’ study
in 2006 covered the 17 largest economies:
the G7 (France, Germany, Italy, Japan,
the UK, the US and Canada) plus Spain,
Australia and South Korea; and the E7
(Brazil, Russia, India, China, Indonesia,
Mexico and Turkey). The extended 2013
study – titled World in 2050 The BRICs
and Beyond: Prospects, Challenges and
Opportunities – also includes Vietnam,
Nigeria, South Africa, Malaysia, Poland,
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Saudi Arabia and Argentina.
The report concludes that the emerging economies are set to grow much
faster than the G7 over the next four
decades. Figures for average growth in
GDP in purchasing power parity (PPP)
terms show Nigeria leading the way over
the period from 2012 to 2050, followed
by Vietnam, India, Indonesia, Malaysia,
China, Saudi Arabia and South Africa.
It must be noted that there is no
single right way to measure the relative
size of emerging economies as compared
to the established OECD economies.
Depending on the purpose of the exercise, GDP at either market exchange rates
or purchasing power parity rates (PPPs)
may be the most appropriate measure. In
general, GDP at PPPs is a better indicator
of average living standards or volumes of
outputs or inputs, while GDP at market

exchange rates is a better measure of the
size of markets for OECD exporters and
investors operating in hard currencies at
any given time.
John Hawksworth, PwC Chief
Economist and co-author of the report,
commented: “The global financial crisis
has hit the G7 much harder than the E7
in the short term. And it has also caused
downward revisions in the estimates of
longer term trend growth in the G7 –
particularly those economies in Europe
and the US that had previously relied on
excessive public and private borrowing to
drive growth.”
This means that, in PPP terms, the E7
could overtake the G7 before 2020; and
by 2050 China, the US and India could
be by far the largest economies – with a
big gap to Brazil in fourth place, ahead
of Japan.

Looking Ahead to 2050

Actual and projected top 20 economies ranked based on GDP in PPP terms
2011
PPP
rank

Country GDP at PPP
(2011 US$bn)

2030
Country Projected GDP at
PPP (2011 US$bn))

2050
Country Projected GDP at
PPP (2011 US$bn)

1

US 15094

China 30634

China 53856

2

China 11347

US 23376

US 37998

3

India 4531

India 13716

India 34704

4

Japan 4381

Japan 5842

Brazil 8825

5

Germany 3221

Russia 5308

Japan 8065

6

Russia 3031

Brazil 4685

Russia 8013

7

Brazil 2305

Germany 4118

Mexico 7409

8

France 2303

Mexico 3662

Indonesia 6346

9

UK 2287

UK 3499

Germany 5822

10

Italy 1979

France 3427

France 5714

11

Mexico 1761

Indonesia 2912

UK 5598

12

Spain 1512

Turkey 2760

Turkey 5032

13

South Korea 1504

Italy 2629

Nigeria 3964

14

Canada 1398

Korea 2454

Italy 3867

15

Turkey 1243

Spain 2327

Spain 3612

16

Indonesia 1131

Canada 2148

Canada 3549

17

Australia 893

Saudi Arabia 1582

South Korea 3545

18

Poland 813

Australia 1535

Saudi Arabia 3090

19

Argentina 720

Poland 1415

Vietnam 2715

20

Saudi Arabia 686

Argentina 1407

Argentina 2620

Source: World Bank estimates for 2011, PwC estimates for 2030 and 2050
And by the same time, Russia, Mexico
and Indonesia could be bigger than
Germany or the UK; Turkey could overtake Italy; and Nigeria could rise up the
league table, as could Vietnam and South
Africa in the longer term.
Beyond the largest economies,
Malaysia has considerable long-term
growth potential, while Poland could continue to outpace its Western European
neighbours for some decades to come.
The table above illustrates the changing league positions in world GDP at
PPPs – selected countries are marked in
bold to highlight notable changes in rankings over time.

But what are the risks that could
derail emerging market growth?
The PwC report cites a number of potential sources of macroeconomic and politi-

cal instability, such as:
• High fiscal deficits in India and Brazil
• Over-reliance on oil and gas revenues
in Russia and Nigeria
• Rising income inequality leading to
social tensions in China and other
fast-growing economies
• Macroeconomic and financial instability in Vietnam.
The report also highlights the pressure
on natural resources from rapid growth in
emerging economies, including the increasing difficulty of keeping global warming to
no more than 2˚C. While new unconventional energy sources such as shale gas
were reducing fears of running out of fossil
fuels, the dangers associated with more
volatile global climate patterns only seem
likely to increase over the next four decades based on the projections in the report.

John Hawksworth concluded that:
“The shift in the global economic centre
of gravity is clear; but there are still major
challenges for the emerging economies
to sustain their recent strong growth. At
the same time, there are huge opportunities for Western companies in the emerging markets – but also great competitive
challenges from fast-growing emerging
market companies. Governments also
face huge challenges, not least in relation
to global warming as a result of this rapid
pace of economic development.” n
This article is contributed by PwC. In
this article PwC shared some of the findings from the latest `World in 2050 The
BRICs and Beyond: Prospects, Challenges
and Opportunities’ report. The complete
report can be accessed at www.pwc.com/
world2050.
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Supply chain as stimulus?
Reducing Supply Chain Barriers Could Increase Global GDP Up to Six Times
More Than Removing All Import Tariffs.
n Report finds that improvements in border administration and transport and telecommunications infrastructure and services could result in an up to 4.7% increase in global GDP,
far outweighing potential income gains from complete elimination of import tariffs.
n Governments should take a holistic approach that considers the entire supply chain,
focusing on all policies that impact supply chain efficiency to improve national competitiveness.
n SME sector would witness increased trade with solutions to specific constraints that disproportionately affect smaller companies.
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Supply Chain as Stimulus?

R

educing supply chain barriers could
increase global GDP and world trade
much more than reducing all import
tariffs, according to a report released
recently by the World Economic Forum
in collaboration with Bain & Company and the World
Bank.
Enabling Trade: Valuing Growth Opportunities
finds that if all countries reduce supply chain barriers halfway to global best practice, global GDP
could increase by 4.7% and world trade by 14.5%, far
outweighing the benefits from the elimination of all
import tariffs. In comparison, completely eliminating
tariffs could increase global GDP by 0.7% and world
trade by 10.1%. Even a less ambitious set of reforms
that moves countries halfway to regional best practice could increase global GDP by 2.6% and world
trade by 9.4%. Economic gains from reducing supply chain barriers are also more evenly distributed
across countries than the gains associated with tariff
elimination. Regions that stand to benefit in particular under these scenarios are sub-Saharan Africa and
Southeast Asia. Such large increases in GDP would
be associated with positive effects on unemployment, potentially adding millions of jobs to the global
workforce.

Enabling Trade: Valuing Growth Opportunities was
initiated by the Forum’s Global Agenda Councils on
Logistics & Supply Chains and Global Trade & FDI.
The report provides a wealth of information regarding how policies can create unnecessary supply chain
costs and inefficiencies based on 18 case examples
spanning multiple industries and regions. The case
examples highlight that clusters of policies jointly
impact supply chain performance; that a concerted
approach is needed to cut across different policy
domains; that there may be specific tipping points that
need to be achieved for reductions in supply chain
barriers to have a significant impact on trade; and that
small and medium enterprises (SMEs) tend to face
proportionally higher supply chain barriers and costs.
The report recommends that governments create
a focal point to coordinate and oversee all regulation
that directly impacts supply chains; that publicprivate partnerships be established to undertake
regular data collection, monitoring and analysis of
factors affecting supply chain performance; and that
governments pursue a more holistic, supply-chaincentred approach towards international trade negotiations to ensure that trade agreements have greater
relevance for international business and do more to
benefit consumers and households.

Economic gains from reducing supply chain barriers are also more evenly distributed
across countries than the gains associated with tariff elimination.
According to the report, lowering supply chain
barriers is effective because it eliminates resource
waste and reduces costs to trading firms and, by
extension, lowers prices to consumers and businesses. Supply chain barriers can result from inefficient
customs and administrative procedures, complex
regulation and weaknesses in infrastructure services,
among many others. The supply chain is the network
of activities involved in producing and getting a product to consumers, and spans the manufacturing process as well as transport and distribution services.

“The Forum’s Enabling Trade programme has
endeavoured to highlight the fundamental attributes
that enable a country to facilitate trade,” said Børge
Brende, Managing Director, World Economic Forum.
“Through a vivid repository of case studies, which
provide an on-the-ground view of everyday barriers
that companies face along trade lanes, this report
shows that removing barriers to supply chains can
enhance economic competitiveness and generate
significant welfare benefits and jobs for countries.”
“The case studies show that countries can lose
their competitive advantage in terms of factor costs,
if the costs associated with their supply chain barriers are high,” said Mark Gottfredson, Partner,
Bain & Company. “The lesson for companies is the
importance of understanding supply chain barriers
and how the associated costs and delays can erode
other sourcing advantages. For example, a case study
on the apparel industry illustrates how delays at the
border, inconsistent application of regulations, and
infrastructure issues completely offset significant
labour cost advantages for many countries.”
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Eliminating supply chain barriers in the Southeast Asian rubber market could reduce
carried inventories by 90 days, representing a 10% reduction in product cost.
“Supply chain barriers are more significant impediments to trade than import tariffs,” said Bernard
Hoekman, Director of the World Bank’s International Trade Department, who is also the Chair of the Forum’s
Global Agenda Councils on Logistics & Supply Chains. “Lowering these barriers will reduce costs for businesses, and help generate more jobs and economic opportunities for people.” n
This article is contributed by Bain & Company, a global business consulting firm. Opinion and views expressed
in this article do not necessarily represent the views of MIA. For more information visit www.bain.com or email
southeastasia.contact@bain.com.

Some examples from the 18 country and sector case studies in the report include the following:
n

n

n

n

n
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In Brazil, managing customs paperwork for exports
of agricultural commodities can take 12 times
longer than in the European Union (a full day versus a couple of hours).
Poor quality infrastructure services can increase
the input material costs of consumer goods by up
to 200% in certain African countries.
In Madagascar, supply chain barriers can account
for about 4% of total revenues of a textile producer
(through higher freight costs and increased inventories), eroding the benefits of duty-free access to
export markets.
Obtaining licenses and lack of coordination among
regulatory agencies in the US lead to delays in up
to 30% of chemical shipments for one company –
each late shipment costs US$60,000 per day.
In Russia, product testing and licensing in the computer sector can lead to high administrative costs
and delay time-to-market anywhere from 10 days
to eight weeks.

accountants today | March / April 2013

n

n

n

n

n

Local content requirements, rule-of-origin restrictions and pilferage at the border, can increase
costs by 6-9% of consumer technology products in
the Middle East and North Africa.
Eliminating supply chain barriers in the Southeast
Asian rubber market could reduce carried inventories by 90 days, representing a 10% reduction in
product cost.
India’s Preferential Market Access regulation, which
provides preference for locally produced hightech products in government procurement, could
increase costs by 10%, over the cost of imports.
Adopting electronic documentation for the air
cargo industry could yield US$12 billion in annual
savings and prevent 70-80% of paperwork-related
delays.
Easing regulatory compliance of international
trade that SMEs face when selling through the
Internet could increase cross-border SME sales by
60-80%.

Work in Finance?
Consult the Virtual Expert
Anytime, Anywhere
i-Finance Pro is a one-stop online library that provides reliable and expert-quality answers on financial reporting, taxation,
company secretarial practices, employment law, business licensing and financial management.

Benefits:

P Accessible anytime, anywhere

P Pertinent information

P Superior, concise content

P Timely alerts and updates

P Useful pointers
This Online Library Includes:
Malaysia Financial Reporting Experts (Author: Tan Liong Tong): Practical and issues-based, this library provides analytical
commentary on the application of Malaysia Financial Reporting Standards (MFRS), offering illustrative worked examples and
sample financial statements.
Malaysia Private Entities Reporting Standards: Guides users on the important principles of PERS to ensure proper
implementation and appropriate compliance.
Malaysia Accountants Manual: An overview guide and practical commentary encompassing a wide range of key topics on
functional accounting responsibilities.
Malaysian Accounting Tracker: This tool delivers the latest accounting news and analysis on legislative changes, important
rulings, cases and industry best practices to you.

Stay informed about the latest accounting developments. Limited tracker units available.
Please register by 31 May 2013 at www.icubez.com/cch/mia
For more information and a free no-obligation demonstration, please contact us at
03 - 2052 4688 (ext. Sales) or email mktg@cch.com.my

Get a FREE
Accounting
Tracker Now!

Scan for details

CCH Malaysia
+603.2052.4688

+603.2026.7003

mktg@cch.com.my

www.cch.com.my
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Staid corporations
earning run-of-the-mill
but steady returns year on year
might want to add some spice
by gearing up.
Yogaretnam Kanagandram

W

ould a woman prefer to settle down
with a dangerous but exciting bad
boy or a nice and stable but somewhat boring chap? A few days ago, I
bumped into a corporate lawyer who
stays in my neighbourhood. She’s petite and quite a
looker. In the exchange of pleasantries, I asked her
how was work. She replied that she’s inundated with
applications to issue bonds. It appears that several
corporations are now (as in January 2013) of the opinion that interest rates may finally show a noticeable
upward trend. A February article in the business sec-
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tion of a major local daily reported that minimum
wages and strong domestic demand could see CPI
rising. There’s also a growing view amongst economists lately that the world economy is on a better footing which augurs for loftier interest rates.
Corporations are apparently rushing through that
narrow door to get the legal documents in order
and fulfill all the regulatory approvals and other
prerequisites before the bonds can be issued and
the proceeds be put to good commercial use.
The Shrinking Company
Back in June 2011 as a shareholder I attended
the annual general meeting (AGM) of a company
which had seen better times. I rushed in just as the
AGM got going and took my place in the front row
amongst journalists. The place was packed. The
shareholders surprisingly seemed to take a keen
interest in the financials of the company besides
the door gifts and filling their stomachs with the
mediocre brunch spread. The panel of
directors looked distinguished. They came
across to me as prudent and conscientious
– a rarity these days. However, most of
them were in their twilight years, people
whom you would typically imagine to
be playing with grand kids instead of
bearing the burden of corporate wheeling and dealing. As I flipped through
the annual report, I heard in the background the other shareholders ranting
and raving about the declining fortunes
of the company. One cynical shareholder grumbled in a typical local accent:

“Aiya, what else can we do now except sell Char
Kuey Teow?”. The silver-haired Chairman candidly
lamented the lack of viable commercial opportunities to drive the company forward. He said that
they were attempting to make fresh forays into
China among others, to produce and distribute
bread. The outcome of this venture was too hazy
to predict.
Some background information - this company
had sold off some of its major long-standing
money-spinning businesses and realised handsome gains, a large part of which had been distributed to shareholders as special dividends. Another
money spinner was sold to a foreign corporation
in exchange for its shares resulting in a significant but minority stake in the buyer. Hence a big
chunk of its consolidated profit was merely the
result of observing the rules of equity accounting
with little correlation to actual cash filling up the
coffers. Let’s not speculate about the reasons as
to why those businesses were disposed off.
My assessment of the company was that the
remnants of its business were sufficient for
the company to register a little more than
yearly nominal profits – nothing really exciting for the investors. However after a
quick perusal of the financials amidst
the AGM cacophony, I noticed a glaring feature which I thought I could
raise with the panel of directors and
senior management. I was sure that
my suggestion would be so radical that
it would shake the very foundations of
their long-held financial principles.
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Old Guards’ Mindset
I put my hand up. The Chairman gestured to
me to take the stand. My heart pounded as I
walked towards the mike. I clumsily juggled
the annual report in my hands whilst adjusting
my reading glasses. “Mr. Chairman,” I said,
“you and the board of directors have done
a great job in stewarding the company thus
far.” They knew that this was just an opening
gambit for the kicker. Then I made the earthshattering comment: “However, I couldn’t
help noticing that the company does not have
enough loans.” “Why do we need to borrow as
we have enough money and our cash flow is
healthy?” said the Chairman looking perplexed
with raised eyebrows. I upped the ante and said
“You could use the proceeds to declare dividends.” There were other possibilities with the
proceeds but I chose the most radical one just
to enjoy the fun from the anticipated response.
Now the Chairman was stumped. He shook
his finger at me and said, “You must be some
sort of an investment banker.” He went on to
berate me at length about what happened in
the US and the global financial crisis which
he blamed largely on investment bankers who
advised on corporate manoeuvres rather than
hard work. “We believe in expanding our core
businesses and relevant fields instead of financial modelling to enhance value. Our focus is
creating sustainable businesses with strong
substance through operational excellence and
continuous improvement …” he went on. As
he spoke, I felt the mocking vibes of other
shareholders. I tried to explain but realised that
this was not the forum to articulate the technical details and merits of such a move.
Debt Under the Hood
What are the repercussions of gearing up?
Technically speaking, the return on equity will
be augmented by the excess of return on assets
over cost of debt multiplied by the ratio of Debt
to Equity. Huh? The whole idea is premised on
the fundamental law of finance which dictates
that the cost of borrowing is lower than the cost
of equity. Financial engineers capitalise on this
maxim to the hilt when structuring finance to
satisfy both investors craving for added returns
and borrowers seeking ways to reduce the cost
of debt.
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Of Deserts and Debts
Corporations likewise can borrow to add excitement for shareholders. How’s
that? Imagine that you are in the middle of a hot desert, in possession of
40kg of gold that belongs to you but no food and water. You have two other
friends in the same predicament but minus the gold. The nearest town is
10 kilometres away. You have two choices - carry the gold all by yourself
albeit a struggle across the hot desert but get to keep all of it if you reach
the town. However the chances of making it all by yourself are slim. In fact,
you would most likely die in the scorching heat. Alternatively, you could get
your friends to help out. Although chances may be brighter of making it to
town, you would have to share the spoils. Would you choose the all or nothing route or the safer one? No right or wrong answer here. It depends on
your risk appetite.
To see the parallels, the highly geared situation is akin to the first option
of our desert analogy i.e. keeping the gold all for yourself. Less equity hence
more debt would simply mean less shareholders’ mouths to feed what
remains as corporate earnings. Ah but before you forget, on the other side
of the coin, it would entail lesser shareholders to bear the burden of losses
should that be the case. In other words each mouth would have to swallow
bigger chunks of bitter losses. It would be a world of extremes.
My take is that if you are a dull brick and mortar corporation earning runof-the-mill but steady returns year on year, then you fit the bill to add some
spice by gearing up. By now, your mom would have advised you that there’s
no such thing as a free lunch. You would have to live with the added volatility
that comes with the territory.
Now tell me sincerely, what’s your pick – dangerous but exciting or nice
but boring? n
Yogaretnam Kanagandram is the General Manager Risk Management for the
Asian Institute of Finance. He can be reached for comments at (yogaretnam@
aif.org.my).
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Transform
to

perform dea*th

Businesses
that fail tok
change ris

Majella Gomes

“Every morning, all accountants wake up and
start running,” said Dato’ Lawrence Chan
Kum Peng, international training consultant
and Founder of the Malaysian Association of
Professional Speakers (MAPS), at the final
plenary for the MIA International Conference
2012 on “Transform to Perform in an Innovative
Society.” He was alluding to the race to stay
ahead and maintain competitiveness in an environment where creativity and knowledge have
become as crucial to the profession as the ability to use a calculator.
In a society that prizes innovation to outpace the competition, we have to increase our
capacity to innovate and to change, in order to
maintain momentum and keep ourselves motivated. The logic and mentality of the erstwhile
industrial age, and its dependence on natural
resources, will ultimately be superseded by
creativity, enterprise and daring.
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l Moments of Truth, Stages of
Transformation
To be competitive, we have to keep changing,
not stay static. Change is inspired by “defining
moments of truth”. Chan pointed out that our
lives are changed by the people we meet, the
books we read, the qualifications we obtain,
and the experiences we undergo. These can
be tragic, dramatic, happy, uplifting but they all
have a common denominator: they are defining moments of truth and they instigate us to
change. But is there a real need to change?
“You have to get rid of bad habits, memories
and weaknesses,” Chan declared. “And to spur
this transformation, you have to go through
several stages.”
Outlining several stages of transformation,
he said that we should first be spurred to
transformation out of disgust with ourselves.
“Be disgusted enough to drag ourselves out of

Transform to perform

complacency and create our own need to
transform,” said Chan. Once the desire
to change is sparked, and the decision
to change is made, we will be ready to
handle the next stage, which he referred
to as the 5Ps: purpose, plan, produce,
programme, perform. Everyone needs a
purpose in life; without it there can be no
direction. With this purpose comes the
plan to change mindsets, which is necessary if there is to be any transformation.
To attain the goals which have in the
meantime been identified, more energy
needs to be produced, and programmes
will have to be put in place to achieve our
mission and vision.
“The purpose of our life is to live life
so that our purpose will outlive life,” Chan
said. “We need compelling purposes for
our lives so that we have concrete reasons to change our mindsets. Innovation
is hampered by old mindsets, but we
cannot change if we persist in the old
ways – if we keep doing things the same
way, over and over again. Mindset is the
state of mind which affects our thinking;
the assumptions we carry with us, our
attitudes and beliefs.” But how do we
change something that is as ingrained
as a mindset? “Cultivate inspirational dissatisfaction and the burning desire to do
better,” Chan exhorted. “Dissatisfaction

“Dissatisfaction is the basis
of progress, so cultivate dissatisfaction. Don’t be complacent
– find ways to be better.”
Dato’ Lawrence Chan Kum Peng

is the basis of progress, so cultivate dissatisfaction. Don’t be complacent – find
ways to be better.”
l Move on
The problem with complacency is that
it makes us obsolete. We are stagnant
and stop growing once we become complacent, so it is a state to be avoided
at all costs. Constant, active thinking
will produce more energy, and energy is
power. Successful, creative people have
a lot of energy, he said – and they have
energy because they believe passionately
in what they do. So from this perspective,
one also needs to be fit. Ensure proper
nutrition, sleep and regular exercise, and
manage stress. Chan also urged participants to uphold a value system because
“if you don’t stand for anything, you’ll fall
for everything.” He also identified social
interaction as integral to innovation, since
wider interaction exposes us to more

experiences.
Besides more social interaction, we
should widen our horizons by engaging
in sports, reading, writing, painting and
making time for community involvement.
If schedules start to look very full, it is
time to utilise mind power. Programme
or condition your mind to achieve what
you have set out to do for yourself. Think
positively, as in “I can do all this” instead
of “How am I going to do all this?” for a
start. “Successful people think positively,”
Chan said. “They use positive words and
behave positively. Visualisation, especially positive visualisation, is very powerful.
Our minds think more in pictures and not
so much in words, so you can imagine
how powerful your mind is, when it is
thinking positively all the time. You can
do many things if you just set your mind
to it. Don’t underestimate yourself.”
l When Humanity Meets
Business
Centering on the human element, Chan’s
words underscored the necessity of different approaches if the profession wants
to successfully meet the challenges that
are inevitable in a world where the only
constant is change. Businesses that cannot smoothly integrate the human element with other resources run the risk of
becoming irrelevant in the marketplace.
Sustainability is not something that happens on its own; it is the sum total of a
firm’s efforts.
The most salient feature of sustainability is that it is ongoing. A firm which
commits to sustainability cannot afford
to lose momentum. More and more, sustainability depends on optimising human
qualities – it is becoming about honing
the art of leadership, encouraging pluralism and diversity, and the effective
management of cultures, attitudes and
mindsets. It is also about being inclusive,
and being receptive to change.
Businesses are waking up to the reality that these are “defining moments of
truth”. They are beginning to realise that
if they fail to change in response, they
will die. n
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The ROI of

innovation

As much as successful innovation is crucial in driving
growth and competitiveness in today’s global economy,
getting a return is critical for companies that have
invested substantially in innovation.
Patricia Francis

50

accountants today | March / April 2013

I

nnovation is about creating value
from change, where the change in
the way of doing something results
in wealth creation. “It is the process of converting an idea, business improvement, invention or scientific
discovery into commercially or publicly
successful products and services, processes or systems that improve the way
we do things,’’ said Mark Rozario, Chief
Executive Officer, Agensi Inovasi Malaysia
(AIM).

The ROI of Innovation

AIM was established with the primary
purpose to drive Malaysia towards
establishing an innovative economy
and the country’s aspiration of achieving a high-income nation status with
two clear goals:
• To bring about holistic societal 		
well-being through the cultivation
of the innovation eco-system.
• To drive the national innovation 		
agenda to generate new-wave 		
wealth.

AIM’s investment focus is at the commercialisation and up-scaling stage as nothing
will be deemed as an innovation if it is not
commercialised. It concentrates on companies with innovations that fall within
the various EPP (Entry Point Projects)
initiatives of the NKEA (National Key
Economic Areas) which requires tipping
point assistance to break into the market.
The State of Innovation
in Malaysia
Seventy five per cent of CEOs and CFOs
of private businesses in the US have
made innovation a priority and the numbers are catching up in Malaysia as businesses are starting to realise that they
constantly need to innovate to maintain
their competitive edge and increase market share. Among the companies that
have benefited from innovation are Apple,
Samsung, IBM, Digi and AirAsia.
To ascertain the state of innovation
in Malaysia, the Malaysian Innovation
Climate Survey 2009 was initiated by
Alpha Catalyst Consulting (ACC) to
explore innovation within various types of
organisations. The top three innovation
drivers based on the survey are customers, competitors and technology. Ninety
per cent of the respondents viewed innovation as a key priority for their companies to be successful. However, only 50%
believed their companies are innovative
while only 10% of the respondents strongly agreed that their company has a clear
direction to innovate.
The key findings from the survey

suggest that although organisational leaders are supposed to inculcate innovation,
they are seen as inhibitors to innovation
with a spending of below 1% on innovation. It was reported that there was a low
level of collaboration between companies
and local universities in Malaysia.
Innovation CAN be measured
A survey done by PwC indicated that a
total of 44% of companies link innovation
to the success metrics of their business
while the percentage is about 63% among
innovation-minded companies. Amongst
the top innovation metrics commonly
used are Customer Satisfaction, Market
Expansion, Earnings/Profit Margin,
Growth in Revenue from new products/
services, and Overall Revenue Growth.
The use of metrics to drive and assess
the growth of an organisation is more
than a one-time exercise. It is an ongoing tool for managing innovation. The
approach should involve planning, monitoring and learning with a continuous

feedback loop that assesses progress
and engages key stakeholders to identify
implications, improvements needed and
new opportunities.
Avoid Stifling Innovation
In today’s environment in which ‘Open
Innovation’ can create differentiation and
competitive advantage, some of the conventional metrics used actually inhibit
innovation. Metrics need to evolve to
suit the current environment of ‘Open
Innovation’.
Open Innovation is about reaching a
new paradigm with the use of external as
well as internal ideas which treats R&D
as an open system where innovations
can easily transfer inward and outward.
It helps companies leverage on widely
distributed knowledge with options to
buy or license processes or inventions
(i.e. patents) from other companies while
internal inventions not being used in a
firm’s business should be taken outside
the company.
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The ROI of Innovation

Among the challenges of the current business leaders in implementing metrics, is ‘Choosing the right
metrics’ and ‘Metrics overload’.The three categories
that can be considered for any metrics portfolios are:
• ROI Metrics - Measure Resource Investments and
Financial Returns.
• Organisational Capability Metrics - Focus on the
Infrastructure and the process of innovation.
• Leadership Metrics - Focus on ensuring the senior
management and leaders are supporting the culture of innovation within the organisation.

Innovation in the

Profession

“ Innovation distinguishes between
a leader and a follower.” ~ Steve Jobs
A study conducted by Brand Finance shows that
approximately 62% of the value of the world’s publicly listed companies is now intangible. The value
of companies has been shifting significantly from
tangible assets to intangible assets like Intellectual
Property (IP).
Intangible assets are the most important value-determining factor of an organisation and the
key drivers of shareholder value in the knowledge
economy. It will help differentiate your organisation
from the rest in the market. As the late Steve Jobs
said, “Innovation distinguishes between a leader and
a follower.”
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The role of accountants and finance
professionals needs to evolve to
help organisations gain a competitive edge over their competitors.
Such evolution includes having an
eye for the potential of intangibles, i.e. innovation, taking a leading role in coming up with a valuation process and mechanisms to
evaluate the viability and value of
intangibles and the setting up of a
monitoring process to ensure the
commercialisation of IPs. Nothing
will be deemed as an innovation if
it is not commercialised! n
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BYOD
A Phenomenon!
*Bring Your Own Device

Typically considered a mobile strategy, BYOD is gaining momentum fast.
How will BYOD impact accountants? Find out…
Patricia Francis

F

or the first time in history, technology usage and adoption in the
business environment is being
driven by employees rather than
employers.
The phenomenon of BYOD or Bring
Your Own Device is gaining steam thanks
to employees who are equipped with
a dizzying array of their own computing technologies - mainly mobile devices
such as smartphones, tabs and PDAs
- which keep them connected to supervisors, colleagues and clients for work
purposes.
With the availability of internet, they
are able to connect to the company network and synchronise these devices with
company computers to access corporate
applications and data. Not surprisingly,
these employees prefer to access compa-
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ny resources using their own technology
devices. Not only are they more familiar
with their own tools, these are normally
more powerful and already an integral
part of their daily lives.
Even the White House has embraced
the concept of bringing in one’s personal
technology with federal agencies such
as the Equal Employment Opportunity
Commission (EEOC) successfully integrating their employees’ favourite mobile
devices into the workplace.
However, while the BYOD movement
undoubtedly offers many benefits, such
as lower technology costs for employers and mobility for employees, there
are risks, such as compromised security
of corporate networks due to increased
accessibility by private devices.

BYOD – the Benefits
The benefits of BYOD are undeniably
compelling to employers and employees
at large. Amongst the benefits that BYOD
brings to both parties are:

1 Enhanced mobility and higher job
satisfaction
BYOD has gained popularity because of
today’s emphasis on mobility and business agility to help increase workforce
effectiveness as it empowers employees
to work how, when and wherever they
want to work from. Employees who are
allowed to use their own devices normally
enjoy increased mobility and higher job
satisfaction especially for those who are
required to do field work such as sales
persons and auditors. Public accounting
firms too are seeing how radical advance-

BYOD - A Phenomenon!

ments in mobile technology have created a new way of working and thinking.
Therefore, IT savvy decision makers at
accounting practices are using BYOD
to offer a better work environment for
their staff and keep their workforce more
engaged in order to provide better service to clients.

2 Increase efficiency and
productivity
BYOD increases both efficiency and productivity as employees tend to work faster
and produce better results with a device
or machine that they are familiar with.
When employees have separate, company-issued devices they can simply turn
them off or walk away during off hours or
when they are on vacation. According to
an iPass survey of 1,100 mobile workers
found at http://www.mcpc.com/benefits-ofBYOD and based on personal experience
at work, it seems that employees who
use mobile devices for both work and
personal issues tend to put in significantly
more hours per year than those who do
not, causing a significant impact on the
bottom line of the company. Business
travellers, trade show attendees and sales
people on the road may all find BYOD a
critical piece to maintaining productivity
out of the office.

3 Collaboration and increased
communication
Linking up devices may encourage people to connect together more frequently,
leading to more collaboration and more
effective communications.

4 Promotes work-life balance
BYOD helps employees of all levels maintain a work-life balance at the comfort of
their own device rather than lugging a
cumbersome laptop home. BYOD enables managers to stay on top of resources
and engagements while employees are
able to use their tablet to finish up a
document or clear out their email after
the kids go to bed. In the past, auditors
needed to return to their office after a
field work engagement in order to wrap
up and conclude the audit findings. But

now, with BYOD, they are able to do it
from the comfort of their homes.

5 Ability to retain top performers
With the adoption of BYOD, employers
will be able to retain top performers,
especially those who seek flexible job
arrangements. These are the group who
are often willing to put in the extra hours
outside of the stipulated working hours.
Employers who underestimate the allure
of BYOD and try to ban such extensions
of the top performer’s social system without a good reason are likely to face resistance. Instead, giving these employees a
choice and respecting different preferences can help demonstrate progressive
workplace culture and nurture top performer’s loyalty.

6

Attract a young
workforce

Frequently referred to as the most
entitled and demanding generation
of talent in the workforce, Gen-Ys
expect to be given the choice to
work with devices they feel most
comfortable with, when in the office
and while on the go. As the next
generation of CPAs who were born
nearly with device-in-hand begin
making up more of the workforce,
the boundaries of the office environment will continue to vanish. To
retain this dynamic young workforce,
employers will need to start factoring in the expectations of a 21st century workplace.

7 Cutting edge technology
Organisations that embrace BYOD get
to differentiate themselves with cuttingedge technology without putting in the
concomitant investment in hardware and
software upgrades. Employees tend to
upgrade their devices and machines to
keep up with the current trend unlike
companies which only invest when the
need arises.

8 Reduced end-user management,
troubleshooting and support for IT
department
BYOD also benefits IT departments in
terms of having reducing end-user device
management, troubleshooting and support. The change to a BYOD model
moves responsibility of maintenance and
upkeep of the devices from the IT department to employees for the assets owned
by them. This arrangement would enable
IT to focus on more strategic initiatives
rather than dealing with helpdesk tickets
and troubleshooting.

9 Reduced capital expenditure and
operating costs
BYOD allows users to run their own
device and personal applications without directly affecting the operations of
the corporate data centre via their negligence and improper usage of company’s
machines and peripherals. Thus, it helps
employers eliminate a line item in the
company’s technology budget by simply
leveraging on the devices that employees are already paying for. What’s more,
employees do take better care of their
own devices especially those which they
have selected and purchased using their
own resources. Currently, when a user
introduces a virus onto their work computer, it is the employer and not the
employee who foots the bill for correcting
the problem. This is also the case even if
the virus got in through the employee’s
poor computing habits!

J Improves the billing process
Providing staff with the means to log-on
from any location has a number of benefits to the business as a whole, especially
in areas such as the billing process. In the
past, many busy and on-the-go accountants delayed entering their hours spent
on client work or expenses incurred as
cumbersome access to secure, officebound practice-management tools pushed
this critical task to the bottom of their list.
This could lead to inaccuracies, delayed
billing and ultimately, a detrimental effect
on company revenue.
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Managing the BYOD
Phenomenon
Although BYOD is proving to be the
future of how businesses operate, there is
an ongoing debate amongst employers on
whether the BYOD should be adopted or
disallowed all together as there are challenges to be managed.
However, with BYOD’s impressive growth and benefits, it is getting
tougher for firms to say no to employees
using their own devices as it is clear that
Malaysian employees are not going to stop
using their own handhelds for business.
Denial of this trend is no longer an
option for CIOs or chief information officers. It’s time for them to surpass the
traditional and rigid approach to governing access to data, applications and
networks in order to create a more agile
and cost-effective platform for business.
Firms need to develop the right policies
and implement device-agnostic strategies to manage the challenges and make
BYOD work despite the potential obstacles faced.
Among the areas that require
due attention are:

1 Data Security and flow of information
Security is paramount and should be
incorporated into every aspect of connectivity to data, applications and networks.
Corporate data should be isolated from
personal data as a means of protection.
As a result, legal departments need to
educate employees that they may have a
limited or even non-existent expectation
of privacy related to information sent to or
stored on personal devices used for work
because there can be some data that can
be placed on BYOD devices and some
that can’t.

2 Usage and control
As more employees connect personal
devices to the corporate network, organisations need to modify acceptable usage
policies to accommodate both corporateowned and personally-owned devices.
Management and security levels will
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need to differ based on ownership of the
device and the associated controls that
the organisation requires. Employees
will continue to add devices to the corporate network so organisations must
plan for this legally, operationally and
culturally.

3

Information
technology
support

BYOD may pose new challenges
for the support organisation. While
meeting the needs of users, the IT
support team should not be unduly
burdened with hardware and device
on-boarding issues. A careful balance between employee satisfaction
and access to IT resources is critical.
No organisation can afford to fix an
unlimited range of issues on a large
portfolio of devices, many of which
the organisation doesn’t own and
therefore can’t control in conventional ways.

4 Accountability and security code
of conduct
A workable security policy is as much
about people as it is about technology
solutions. Employees need to understand
the value, confidentiality and privacyrelated concerns relating to personal and
business data as well as how it can be
compromised. Otherwise, it is likely that
they won’t adopt procedures or use security technologies that are put in place.
Employees who choose to participate
in the BYOD programme should be made
accountable and be required to sign binding agreements prior to being allowed to
access company data and applications via
their personal device. Companies should
also ensure that employees don’t have
proprietary or sensitive company data
especially when they leave for another
company.

5 Mobile subscriptions
Although potential savings can be made
from employees bringing their own devices, firm control of costs related to data
roaming and traffic is vital. As employees
turn more and more to mobile subscription plans paid for by the employer, traffic
charges can increase significantly unless
price plans and policies such as imposing
WiFi usage are introduced to avoid hefty
mobile bills.

6 Mobile device management
Mobile devices are legitimate endpoints
that require the same attention as traditional PCs. Management of mobile devices should be integrated into the overall
IT management framework and administered in the same way – ideally using
compatible solutions and unified policies.
Processes, policies, education and technologies that are leveraged for desktops
and laptops should also be applicable to
mobile platforms in order to create operational efficiencies and lower the total cost
of ownership.
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7 Remote security technologies
To help reduce exposure to risk, companies should
drum into all employees the importance of adopting all
available technological assistance such as the installation of an online protection suite that is always on and
automatically updated on all machines and devices.
Security software that would allow data to be remotely
wiped out from the device if it is lost should be installed
for all tablets and smartphones in the company.
Remote management software gives IT the ability
to automatically update users’ devices with the latest
patches to prevent any existing vulnerabilities from
being exploited in mobile attacks. Firms should also
implement centralised remote locate, track, lock,
wipe, backup and restore facilities so that they could
protect, retrieve and restore corporate data on lost or
stolen mobile devices. These remote management
software applications should also have the potential
to wipe valuable contacts and photos from employee
phones, tablets or laptops especially when they leave
the company voluntarily or otherwise.
On the basis of being prudent, it is best for
accountants to weigh the pros and cons based on the
individual needs and that of an organisation while
considering BYOD adoption. To ensure that all factors and implications are considered, companies must
involve all stakeholders such as HR, auditors and legal
staff during the earliest phases of developing a successful BYOD strategy. n
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Leading Bowling
across borders?Tournament 2013
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Accountants rule the lanes
The inaugural MIA Bowling Tournament proveD to be A resounding success

BPAD

Group photo of the participants

Participants
in action

Ernst & Young 1

STAROBA Bowlers

M

ore
than
100
keglers
par ticipated in the recent
Malaysian Institute of
Accountants (MIA) Bowling
tournament which was held
successfully at the Mid Valley Cosmic
Bowl Centre in Kuala Lumpur. Opened
to all MIA Members as well as staff and
partners of accounting firms, the inaugural tournament proved to be a resounding success.
Participants were warmly welcomed
by the then MIA Vice-President, En. Abdul
Rahim Abdul Hamid, who also participated in the tournament. Overall, 38 teams
consisting of three team members each
took up all the lanes in a cheerful atmosphere. The tournament saw Staroba
Bowlers, represented by Faizal Mahadi,
Mohamed Radzif Mohamed Halmi and
Ridzwan Mohd Nor, emerge as team
champions. For the full list of winners see
the table on the right.
At the end of the tournament , a lucky
draw was held. Presenting the prizes to
all the lucky winners were MIA Chief
Executive Officer, Ho Foong Moi and
MIA Chief Operating Officer, Datin SK
Yap. Much credit and thanks are due to
our stakeholders who stepped forward

Rank

Team Name

Players

Champion

STAROBA Bowlers

l Faizal Mahadi
l Mohamed Radzif Mohamed Halmi
l Ridzwan Mohd Nor

1st Runner Up

Ernst & Young 1

l Ahmad Syafiq Mohd Amin
l Elias Mohammad
l Nur Hidayah Adam

BPAD (Bahagian
Pengurusan Audit
Dalaman, Jabatan
Akauntan Negara)

l Zaharin Othman

Queen of the
Lanes

Salihin Capital Sdn
Bhd

l Farhana Zahari

King of the Lanes

Ernst & Young 3

l Liew King Yi

2nd Runner Up

to ensure the success of our inaugural
bowling tournament. The main sponsors
of the MIA Bowling Tournament were
Domino’s Pizza, PwC and CIMB Group.
Prizes were also sponsored by Inpana
& Associates, AmBank Group, Carl’s
Junior Malaysia, ACE Jerneh Insurance

l Azhar Hassan
l Mohd Fadzil Mohd Razuki

Berhad, CIMA, ICAEW, Bagman
Corporation, Canon Marketing (M) Sdn
Bhd, Boulevard Hotel, Compass Creative
Sdn. Bhd., Media X-plosions Sdn. Bhd.,
Chaisang Sdn Bhd, Visual Solutions
(M) Sdn Bhd, Documation Sdn Bhd and
Asiankom Communications Sdn Bhd. n

Thanks to our sponsors

INTAN BROKER
SDN. BERHAD
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BOOK Review
Malaysian Industrial Relations & Employment Law Eighth Edition

Malaysian

Maimunah Aminuddin provides a
unique insight into the various components of the Malaysian industrial
relations system, including the role
of the government, trade unions,
trade disputes, the Industrial Court
and industrial action. She also examines the employment laws which
establish the basic rights for employers and employees, whether or not
they belong to trade unions, including the laws on safety and health.
The concepts are illustrated with
cases, examples and relevant statistics.

Industrial Relations
& Employment Law
Eighth Edition

Malaysian Industrial Relations & Employment Law

by Maimunah Aminuddin
ISBN 9789675771668
PAGES 400 PP

Eighth
Edition
MAIMUNAH
AMINUDDIN

ABOUT THE AUTHOR
Maimunah Aminuddin lectured at
the Faculty of Business Management, Universiti Teknologi MARA
(UiTM) prior to her retirement in

MAIMUNAH AMINUDDIN

2007. She taught industrial relations, employment law and human
resource management for more
than 34 years. Post-retirement she
has taught graduate students at
Universiti Industri Selangor and Universiti Putra Malaysia. Maimunah is
a Fellow of the Malaysian Institute
of Human Resource Management
(MIHRM) and is a former Council
Member as well as former editor
of the Institute’s newsletter. She
frequently conducts seminars and
training programmes, both public
and in-house, on aspects of industrial relations, employment law,
disciplinary systems, performance
management and training for trainers. She has also been involved in a
number of consultancy projects for
various private sector companies. n

2/6/13 4:29:30 PM

RRP: RM47.90

d clear

p of the

SBN 978-967-5771-67-5

Taxation
SECOND EDITION

Taxation

by Jeyapalan Kasipillai
ISBN 9789675771675
PAGES 574 PP
SECOND EDITION

A GUIDE TO ADVANCED MALAYSIAN TAXATION
covers special aspects of taxation, as well as direct and indirect

taxation. It provides an in-depth analysis of the legal, technical
and administrative aspects of Malaysian taxation. It covers all
the latest amendments including those arising from the Budget
2013 and recently issued public rulings.
This book will prove invaluable for income tax practitioners,
accountants, business consultants and corporate managers.
Accounting and law students sitting for the advanced taxation
papers in universities and those taking professional examinations
will find this book useful for its worked examples, questions and
answers, and clear exposition of the applicable law, thus giving
a firm grasp of the law and its practice. The business community

RRP: RM80.90

as well as foreign investors and professionals wanting to invest
in Malaysia will find the explanation on investment incentives
and the chapter on Double Tax Agreements particularly useful.
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Taxation
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A Guide to Advanced
Malaysian Taxation
Second Edition

by Jeyapalan Kasipillai
ISBN 9789675771682
PAGES 640 PP

RRP: RM80.90

SECOND
EDITION

The law is stated as at 1 February 2013.

Jeyapalan
Kasipillai

ISBN 978-967-5771-68-2

Jeyapalan
Kasipillai

9 789675 771682

9 789675 771675
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A Guide to Malaysian Taxation and A
Guide to Advanced Malaysian Taxation are
all-inclusive books covering every aspect of
taxation. The foundations of the works are
legislations extracted from the Income Tax Act
1967.
The books cover all the latest amendments
including those arising from Budget 2013 and
the recently issued exemption orders. These

2/6/13 4:45:45 PM

books will prove invaluable for the individual
taxpayers, accountants, business consultants
and corporate managers, foreign investors and
professionals wanting to invest in Malaysia
as well as students pursuing taxation papers
in tertiary institutions. The worked examples,
questions and answers, and clear exposition of
the applicable law will provide a firm grasp of
the law and its practice. n

20%

MIA members are
entitled to a 20%
discount, kindly email
your orders to
education@mia.org.my
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ACHIEVE YOUR REGIONAL AMBITIONS
WITH BDO IN ASEAN

BDO, the world’s 5th largest network of professional firms offering services in Audit, Advisory and Tax,
is expanding in the ASEAN region.
We invite suitably qualified professionals and graduates/students to build their career with us. In return,
we offer long term career growth and opportunities for active regional involvement.

INTERNATIONAL GRADUATE / STUDENT RECRUITMENT
We invite international graduates/students from ASEAN and China to pursue or continue pursuing a professional accounting
qualification (ICAEW, CPA Australia, MICPA-ICAA or ACCA) under a training contract with BDO in Malaysia.
Applicants should have either completed or are in the final year of an accounting degree programme at a reputable institution
of higher learning. Those who have CICPA (China), graduated from or are studying in universities in Malaysia, Australia,
Singapore and the United Kingdom are encouraged to apply. Work permits will be arranged for eligible and successful candidates.

EXPERIENCED HIRE (For Malaysia)

Directors, Managers & Seniors
AUDIT & ASSURANCE
ADVISORY
•
•
•

Corporate Finance / M&A
Transaction & Restructuring
Forensic

TAX
•
•
•

Transfer Pricing
International Corporate Tax
Expatriate Tax

EXPERIENCED HIRE
(For other ASEAN countries)

• Risk Advisory Services
• Technology Advisory
• Outsourcing

We are also hiring directors and managers in Audit,
Advisory and Tax for our offices in Brunei, Cambodia,
Indonesia, Laos, Myanmar, Thailand and Vietnam,
with a view of leading our business units or practices in
these countries.

• GST
• Tax Audit & Investigation
• Tax Compliance

Applicants should possess the relevant degree,
professional qualification and/or licence to practise in
the respective countries. Only Malaysians and nationals
of other ASEAN member countries need apply.

Send your CV along with recent photograph and copies of
certificates, indicating country of choice, to:
Human Resource Dept
BDO, 12th Floor, Menara Uni.Asia
1008 Jalan Sultan Ismail
50250 Kuala Lumpur, MALAYSIA.
or email to jobs@bdo.my

www.bdo.my
BDO (AF 0206) Chartered Accountants, a Malaysian Partnership, is a member of BDO International Limited,
a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of the international BDO network of independent member firms.
BDO is the brand name for the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms.

Follow BDO ASEAN on LinkedIn

linkedin.com/company/bdo-asean

